CITY OF ARMADALE

AGENDA
OF CITY STRATEGY COMMITTEE TO BE HELD IN THE COMMITTEE ROOM,
ADMINISTRATION CENTRE, 7 ORCHARD AVENUE, ARMADALE ON MONDAY, 10
OCTOBER 2005, AT 7.00 PM.

Meal to be served at 6.15 pm

PRESENT:

APOLOGIES:

OBSERVERS:

IN ATTENDANCE:
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DISCLAIMER
The Disclaimer for protecting Councillors and staff from liability of information and advice
given at Committee meetings to be read by the Chairman.

DECLARATION OF MEMBERS’ INTERESTS

QUESTION TIME

DEPUTATION
Nil

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
RESOLVED
Minutes of the City Strategy Committee Meeting held on 12 September
2005, be confirmed.
ITEMS REFERRED FROM INFORMATION BULLETIN
INFORMATION BULLETIN – ISSUE NO.19/2005
The following items were included for information in the “City Strategy section”
-

Progress Report on Contingency, Operational and Strategic Projects
Report on Outstanding Matters

If any of the items listed above requires clarification or a report for a decision of
Council, this item to be raised for discussion at this juncture.
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LIST OF ACCOUNTS PAID –SEPTEMBER 2005
WARD

All

FILE REF:

FIN/1

DATE

4 Oct 2005

REF

AB/MD

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

Executive Manager
Business Services

In Brief:


The Report presents, pursuant to Regulation 13(1),
(3) & (4) of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 1996, the List of
Accounts paid for the period 1.9.05 TO 30.09.05.

Tabled Items
Nil
Officer Interest Declaration
Nil
Strategic Implications
5.
Developing Our Organisation
Improve the financial viability of Council, by
5.4.2 Developing processes to measure and allocate costs of Council services
5.4.3 Developing improved financial management reports
Legislation Implications
Section 6.10 (d) of the Local Government Act 1995 refers, ie.
6.10. Financial management regulations
Regulations may provide for —
(d) the general management of, and the authorization of payments out of —
(i) the municipal fund; and
(ii) the trust fund,
of a local government.
Regulation 13(1), (3) & (4) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996
refers, ie.
13.
Lists of Accounts
(1)

If the local government has delegated to the CEO the exercise of its power to
make payments from the municipal fund or the trust fund, a list of accounts paid
by the CEO is to be prepared each month showing for each account paid since
the last such list was prepared —
(a)
the payee’s name;
(b)
the amount of the payment;
(c)
the date of the payment; and
(d)
sufficient information to identify the transaction.

CITY STRATEGY
5
COMMITTEE - Financial Management & Planning
(3)

(4)

10 OCTOBER 2005

A list prepared under subregulation (1) is to be —
(a)
presented to the council at the next ordinary meeting of the
council after the list is prepared; and
(b)
recorded in the minutes of that meeting.
After the list referred to in subregulation (1) has been prepared for a month the
total of all other outstanding accounts is to be calculated and a statement of
that amount is to be presented to the council at the meeting referred to in
subregulation (3)(a).

Council Policy/Local Law Implications
Nil
Budget/Financial Implications
All accounts paid have been duly incurred and authorised for payment as per approved
purchasing and payment procedures.
Consultation
Nil
BACKGROUND
Pursuant to Section 5.42 of the Local Government Act 1995 (Delegation of some powers and
duties to CEO), Council has resolved to delegate to the CEO (Primary Delegation No: 150
refers) the exercise of its powers to make payments from the municipal and trust funds.
COMMENT
The List of Accounts paid for the period 1 September 2005 to 30 September 2005 is presented at
Attachment A-1 of the Agenda.
RECOMMEND
That Council note the List of Accounts paid as presented at Attachment A-1
of this Report and summarised as follows:
Municipal Fund
Accounts paid totalling $23,936,445.38 on Vouchers 2460 - 2606, Batch 178 Batch 192, 100179 – 100203 & 300023 - 300024
Trust Fund
Nil
Moved Cr ____________
Motion Carried/Lost (….)
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FINANCIAL REPORT –AUGUST 2005
WARD

:

FILE REF

:

FIN/1

DATE

:

4 Oct 2005

REF

:

AFM / NC

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

:

EDCorpS and EMBS

ALL

In Brief: This Report is in response to Council’s resolution of
19th September 2005 to “refer the Financial Report
for the period ended 31 Aug 2005 to the October
2005 City Strategy Committee meeting for review”.

Tabled Items
Nil
Strategic Implications
Developing our Organisation:
Improve the environment for effective governance;
Improve the overall financial viability of Council.
Legislation Implications
Local Government Act 1995 – Part 6 – Division 3 – Reporting on Activities and Finance
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations – Part 4 – Financial Reports
Council Policy/Local Law Implications
Nil
Budget/Financial Implications
The Statement of Financial Activity as presented refers and explains.
Consultation
Directors and Managers relevant to the reported instances of ‘material variance’.

BACKGROUND
The purpose of this Report is to provide Committee/Council with further opportunity to review
in more detail the Financial Report as previously presented to the 19th September Council
Meeting via the CEO’s Report. The Report as previously presented and resolved is reproduced at
Attachment A-2.
PROPOSAL AND COMMENT
It is proposed that the Executive Director Corporate Services speak to, explain and respond to
any queries from Committee members on his prior Reports as presented at Attachments A-2 and
A-3 to this report.
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RECOMMEND
That Council:
1. Reaffirm its Resolution 383/9/05 of 19 September 2005 which was as
follows:That Council 1. Pursuant to clause 34(5) of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations, adopt the following indicators of material
variance for use in Statements of Financial Activity for the 2005-06
financial year, i.e.
• Revenues – ‘material variances’ will be identified, where for the
period being reported, the actual is less than budget by an amount
greater than $50,000 – in these instances explanatory comment to be
provided.
• Expenditures – ‘material variances’ will be identified, where for the
period being reported, the actual is greater than budget by an
amount greater than $100,000 – in these instances explanatory
comment to be provided.
2. Approve the following practice for presenting future Monthly
Financial Reports to Council, i.e.
• Monthly Financial Reports be presented to the second Council
meeting of each month via the CEO’s Report and that part of the
Report Recommendation be to refer the Monthly Financial
Report as presented, to the next City Strategy Committee for
review and analysis.
2.

Accept the Financial Report for the period ended 31st August 2005 as
presented at Attachment A-3 to this Report.

Moved Cr _______________
Carried/Lost ( )
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ANNUAL REPORT – 2004/2005
WARD

All

In Brief:

FILE REF:

COA/25

DATE

3 Oct 2005

REF

MD

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

Manager Governance &
Administration

Council is requested to:
▪ Accept the 2004/2005 Annual Report
▪ Determine the date, time and place of the Annual
General Meeting of Electors

Tabled Items
Nil
Officer Interest Declaration
Nil
Strategic Implications
Communication: To achieve a dialogue with the community to have a clearer understanding of
the community’s needs and expectations.
Legislation Implications
Sections 5.27, 5.53, 5.54 and 5.56 of the Local Government Act 1995.
Council Policy/Local Law Implications
Nil
Budget/Financial Implications
Sufficient funds have been allocated in Council’s budget to cover all costs associated with the
preparation of the 2004/2005 Annual Report and Annual General Meeting of Electors.
Consultation
▪ Mayor
▪ CEO
▪ Senior officers
▪ Design/publishing houses
COMMENT
In accordance with s5.27 and s5.54 of the Local Government Act 1995 (the Act) Council’s
acceptance is required of the 2004/2005 Annual Report (Text only) and to determine the date,
time and place of the Annual General Meeting of Electors (AGM).
The City’s 2004/2005 Annual report satisfies s5.53 of the Act as it contains the following:
•

A report from the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer

•

The financial report for the financial year;

•

The Auditor’s report for the financial year;

•

Information as prescribed in relation to payments made to employees;
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•

A matter on which a report must be made under section 29(2) of the Disability Services
Act 1993; and

•

Reference to the City’s “Information Statement”, National Competition Policy and
Record Keeping requirements.

A number of recent amendments to section 5.56 of the Act have removed the requirement for
local governments to both prepare and report on their “plan of principal activities”. This
requirement however has been replaced with “Planning for the future”.
In accordance with regulation 19C of the Local Government (Administration) Regulations,
Council is not required to report on its “plan for the future” until after the financial year ending
30 June 2006.
Additional changes to section 5.54 of the Act also require local governments to accept their
annual reports by an absolute majority.
Council is therefore requested to accept by absolute majority the 2004/2005 Annual Report
(Text only) presented at Attachment “5”, and to approve the time, date and venue of the AGM
being 7:00pm, Thursday 17 November 2005 in the City’s Function Room, 7 Orchard Avenue
Armadale.
For Council information, the proposed timetable for completion of the Annual Report and
convening of the AGM is as follows:
Due Date
•
Council Meeting 17 October 2005

•

Task
Annual Report presented to Council via City
Strategy Committee with recommendation to
accept the Report.
Council to determine date, time and place of
Annual General Meeting of Electors.

Notices to be placed in 1 November
“Comment” and 10 November “Examiner”
newspapers.

Public notice to be given re:
• Availability of the Annual Report; and
• Date, time, place and purpose of the Annual
General Meeting of Electors

Tuesday 15 November 2005

AGM reminder advertisement and distribution of A4
flyer summarised Annual Report to households.

Thursday 17 November 2005

Annual General Meeting of Electors to be held in the
Function Room commencing at 7:00 p.m.

Council Meeting 19 December 2005

Minutes of AGM to be reported to Council.

Progress on the artwork for the cover and layout is nearing completion and is expected to be
completed in time for the AGM.
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RECOMMEND
That Council:
1.

accepts the 2004/2005 Annual Report for the year ending 30 June
2005, as presented at Attachment “5”.

2.

hold its Annual General Meeting of Electors on Thursday, 17
November 2005 at 7:00 p.m. in the City’s Function Room, 7 Orchard
Avenue, Armadale.

ABSOLUTE MAJORITY REQUIRED
Moved Cr_____________________
Motion Carried/Lost (……)
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PUBLIC OPEN SPACE STRATEGY – FINALISATION OF STAGE 6
WARD

:

NEERIGEN &
RIVER

FILE REF

:

POS/1

DATE

:

23 September 2005

REF

:

CRG

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

:

EDDS

In Brief • Public consultation for Stage 6 of the City’s Public
Open Space Strategy is complete.
• A business case for the use of funds that may be
generated through the disposal of reserves has been
prepared.
• Recommend Council cancel, rezone, and dispose of
Reserve 29937 at Wandoo St Mt Nasura for
residential development, and refer the matter of the
long-term preservation of the wandoo tree that
occupies the verge to the City’s Heritage Advisory
Committee for consideration.
• Recommend the portion of Reserve 30253 that
consists of Lot 90 Brookton Highway, Lot 245 and
213 Hicks Rd be cancelled, rezoned and sold for
residential development, whilst retaining a public
access way no less than 10 meters in width to allow
access from Hicks Rd to Brookton Highway.
• Recommend Council cancel, rezone and dispose of
Reserve 26826 at 15 Gemsarna Cres Kelmscott,
Reserve 31693 at Lefroy St Mt Nasura, Reserve
32225 at 17 Bromfield Drive Kelmscott, & Reserve
28364 at 15 Millen St Mt Nasura.
• Recommend Council defer consideration of Reserve
28218 until the City’s Gateways project is complete.

Tabled Items
• Consultants Report ‘Assessment of existing Public Open Space within urban areas of the
City of Armadale’ (A copy of this report was supplied to Councillors in February 2001).
Officer Interest Declaration
Nil.
Strategic Implications
Social Infrastructure Item 2.3 Develop a Strategic Plan for the provision of recreation services
and facilities.
Legislation Implications
Land Administration Act 1997
Town Planning and Development Act 1928
Town Planning Scheme No. 2
Council Policy / Local Law Implications
Nil.
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Budget / Financial Implications
Stage 6 of the Public Open Space Strategy proposes to dispose of 1.35 hectares, transfer 0.80
hectares and accept vesting of 18.91 hectares of public open space. This equates to a net increase of
approximately 17.5 hectares of public open space managed by the City within the Canning River &
Foothills (3) Precinct.
The current area available for Public Open Space in the precinct has been calculated at 7.5% of the
residential area. The area of land available for public open space will increase to approximately
10.75% of the residential area, following the acceptance of vested land as previously resolved by
Council (see page 2 to 4 for CS10/47/10).
The costs of managing minor passive reserves are approximately $1,600 per hectare per annum.
Such an increase in the area of public open space vested in the City of Armadale equates to an
increase in management costs of approximately $28,000 per annum.
If reserves are disposed, and funds utilised as recommended in this report, these improvements are
likely to have maintenance requirements in the order of $70,000 per annum.
Consultation.
Public consultation consistent with Department for Planning and Infrastructure (Land Asset
Management) guidelines for the administration of Section 20A reserves has taken place for Stage 6
of the Public Open Space Strategy (hereafter referred to as the POS Strategy). For a reserve to be
cancelled, Council needs to demonstrate to the Minister for Lands the level of citizen’s support.
Consultation involved writing to all landholders within 100m walking distance of each reserve,
signposting reserves proposed to be cancelled, and newspaper advertising. Submissions were open
from 25 November 2004 to 31 January 2005.
Thirty-four submissions were received during the public consultation period in response to the
public advertising of Stage 6. These submissions referred to a total of 9 different areas. Attachment
One provides a summary and description of submissions. Submissions relating to the use of funds
raised from the sale of public open space are presented in the ‘Details of Proposal’ section of this
report.
BACKGROUND
In July 1999 Council resolved to take a strategic approach to Public Open Space rationalisation. In
2000, a comprehensive review of Public Open Space was undertaken. The City has been
progressing to address the recommendations of the seven stages of the POS Strategy. Stage 6 of the
Strategy includes the Canning River and Foothills (3) Precinct.
At its meeting 18 October 2004 Council resolved (CS47/10/04)
“That Council commence public consultation for the Canning River and Foothills (3) Precinct
consistent with the Department for Planning and Infrastructure Guidelines for administration of
Section 20A Public Recreation Reserves…”
The public consultation period for Stage 6 of the Public Open Space Strategy (Canning River
and Foothills (3) Precinct) was completed in January 2005.
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Advertisement of Stage 6 of the POS Strategy included a proposal to accept vesting of a number
of reserves within the Canning River and Foothills 3 Precinct. Subject to no adverse public
comment being received, Officers are now in the process of accepting vesting of these areas (a
net increase of 18 hectares f public open space in the precinct).
In March 2005, Council resolved to defer consideration of Stage 6 until a business case is prepared
(CS24/3/05).
“That Council defer consideration of Stage 6 of the City’s Public Open Space Strategy until a
report is prepared indicating the amount of funds estimated to be raised as a result of the
disposal process for this stage and a business plan indicating how the funds raised are intended
to be spent”
A business plan indicating the amount of funds estimated to be raised and the intended use of the
funds has now been prepared and is included in this report.
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL
The following sections first consider public submissions received regarding a number of reserves
proposed for disposal as a part of Stage 6 of the POS Strategy (section titled: Reserves Proposed for
Disposal).
Subsequent sections detail a proposal for the use of funds, as requested by Council in March 2005
(section titled: Proposal for the use of funds generated).
RESERVES PROPOSED FOR DISPOSAL
The following proposals require detailed consideration based on public submissions. Key aspects
of submissions are discussed in subsequent sections. For a full description of issues raised in
submissions, refer to Attachment 4.
Proposal to Cancel, Rezone and Dispose of Reserve 31693 - 28 Lefroy Rd Mt Nasura
Submissions: Two submissions opposed the proposal. Key points raised include the habitat,
landscape and heritage values of the wandoo trees that occupy the reserve, the lack of alternative
open space available to local children without crossing a major road, potential increased traffic
flow from new residences once developed, and potential damage to an adjacent property from
deep wandoo tree roots (if trees were removed from the reserve).
Response: A number of the wandoo trees that occur between the Brookton Highway and Reserve
31693 are within the road reserve. One large wandoo tree occurs close to the reserves Lefroy Rd
street frontage, and a number of other wandoo trees occur close to the boundary with 26 Lefroy
Rd. The vegetation that occurs on Reserve 31693 and on the adjacent road reserve is illustrated
in Figure 1.
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Figure 1
The remnant wandoo trees on this reserve are not part of a functioning natural bushland. It is
recognised that these trees are of value to the native birds, reptiles and insects that may be
utilising them for habitat. However, an area with degraded vegetation such as Reserve 31693 is
unlikely to be managed by the City as a natural area.
The cultural and landscape value of the wandoo trees was also identified in submissions. The
trees on this reserve are of considerable age. They are not listed on Councils’ significant tree
register.
The closest neighbourhood park to Reserve 31693 is Reserve 27337 on the corner of Wandoo St
and Parker Ave, Mt Nasura. Upgrades to Reserve 27337 are proposed using funds generated
from the disposal of public open space in this precinct (see section titled: Proposal for the use of
Funds Generated). Reserve 27337 on Wandoo St is 380 metres from Reserve 31693 if travelling
along Lefroy Rd via Dale St (Location Map 1).
Reserve 31693 is 1,628m2, with its main street frontage on Lefroy Rd and a narrower street
frontage on Glenfield Place. The surrounding zoning is currently R10. Under the draft TPS 4, the
area will remain R10. An area such as this with 2 street frontages would have a maximum
development potential up to R30 upon application. Notwithstanding this, traffic from new
residents is unlikely to result in a significant increase in traffic volumes.
The influence of the removal of trees on Reserve 31693 is unlikely to have an effect on the
structure on adjacent properties.
Recommend Council cancel Reserve 31693 on Lefroy St Mt Nasura, rezone to R10 and sell
for residential development.
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Proposal to Cancel, Rezone and Dispose of Reserve 29937 - 15 Wandoo St Mt Nasura
Submissions: Eight submissions opposed the proposal. Key points raised include the
environmental, heritage and landscape values of remnant wandoo trees that occur on the reserve,
the lack of alternative public open space without crossing busy roads, and the loss of the sense of
low-density housing. The value of investigating opportunities for long-term preservation of large
remnant trees in the area was also identified.
Response: Submissions specifically refer to the significance of the large wandoo tree that occurs
on the verge of reserve, and suggest the potential for the tree to be added to the Council’s
register of significant trees. The particular tree is outside of Reserve 29937.
Submissions also related to the grove of wandoo trees that occur on the reserve. This grove of
wandoo trees is not part of a functioning natural bushland. It is recognised that these trees are of
value to the native birds, reptiles and insects that may be utilising them for habitat. However, an
area with degraded vegetation such as Reserve 29937 (Figure 2) is unlikely to be managed by
the City as a natural area. No trees on this reserve are listed on the City’s register of trees of
significance.

Figure 2
Alternative public open space is available at Reserve 27737 on the Corner of Wandoo St and
Parker Ave. This is on the same road as Reserve 29937 less than 150 metres away (Location
Map 1). Upgrades to Reserve 27337 are proposed using funds generated from the disposal of
public open space in this precinct (see section titled: Proposal for the use of Funds Generated).
The land is zoned R10 under the current Town Planning Scheme. Under draft TPS 4, Reserve
29937 would have a maximum development potential of R10 for single housing and up to R25
for group dwellings, along with other lots in the vicinity.
Recommend Council cancel, rezone, and dispose of Reserve 29937 on Wandoo St Mt
Nasura for residential development, and refer the matter of the long-term preservation of
the wandoo tree that occupies the verge to the City’s Heritage Advisory Committee for
consideration.
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Proposal: Cancel, Rezone and Dispose of Reserve 28364 – Millen St Mt Nasura
Submissions: Eight submissions opposed the proposal. Key issues raised included the use of the
reserve by adults and children for recreation, and as an access way to Brookton Highway.
Submissions also referred to the value of the reserve for urban stormwater management.
Response: Reserve 28364 links Bamlett St and Millen Street. Alternative public open space
(vested Reserve 28746 and 28899) is less than 50 metres away from Reserve 28364. This
alternative public open space also links Millen and Bamlett Street, allowing access from Bamlett
St to Brookton Highway via Ellen St (Location Map 2). This alternative route is approximately
100 metres greater than if Reserve 28364 is utilised. Upgrades to Reserve 28746 and 28899 are
proposed using funds generated from the disposal of public open space in this precinct (see
section titled: Proposal for the use of Funds Generated).
In comparison, together Reserves 28746 and Reserves 28899 provide 4,849 m2 of public open
space when compared to Reserve 28364 that only provides 1,636m2.
Reserve 28364 is illustrated in Figure 3.

Figure 3
The land is currently zoned R10. Under a draft TPS 4, this land, as it has two street frontages,
has development potential up to R30.
A large drain (piped) runs adjacent to Reserve 28364. This pipe is contained in a separate
drainage reserve (Reserve 28245) and is not impacted by this proposal.
Recommend Council cancel, rezone to R10 and dispose of Reserve 28364 on Millen St Mt
Nasura, for residential development.
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Proposal: Cancel, Rezone and Dispose of portion of Reserve 30253 (opposite Kevin Rd
Kelmscott) Hicks Rd Kelmscott
Submissions: Two submissions supported the proposal and twelve opposed. Key issues raised
include the use of the reserve to access Brookton Highway (shops and bus-stop). Residents
expressed concern that other routes involve the ascent and decent of steep sloping streets or the
use of another reserve that has poor visibility and surveillance. Reserve 30253 was identified as
a popular location for recreation, and for its environmental values (specifically birds).
Response: The location of the portion of Reserve 30253 opposite Kevin Rd Kelmscott is
illustrated in Location Map 3. Alternative access to Brookton Highway involves the ascent and
decent of steep streets. Travel distance is increased by more than 700 metres from Hicks Road
(by following Kevin Rd and Ranford St). There is a well-worn path through Reserve 30253 (see
Figure 4).
Alternative access from Hicks Rd to Brookton Highway through the second portion of Reserve
30253 at the end of Hicks Road (which Council previously proposed to accept vesting) is
possible. However, this reserve contains a watercourse, remnant canopy vegetation, and is an
undesirable walking route.
Hicks Rd is not currently developed through to Ranford Rd (see Location Map 3). Once this
road is developed, it would provide a link back to Brookton Highway. In the event of the close
of Reserve 30253 and the development of Hicks Rd through to Ranford St, the travel distance
from Hicks to Brookton Highway will be increased by 300m. There are currently no plans to
develop Hicks Rd through to Ranford St.
The Reserve contains tall weeds and does not appear to be utilised for recreation (see Figure 4).
City of Armadale vested recreation reserve 38112 and a network of drainage reserves occur
within 150 metres of Reserve 30253 (see Location Map 3).

Figure 4
There is potential to develop 1,800 m2 of the reserve, and retain a ten-metre public access way
from Hicks Rd to Brookton Highway.
Recommend the portion of 30253 that consists of Lot 90, 245 and 213 be cancelled, rezoned
and sold for residential development, whilst retaining a public access way no less than 10
metres in width to allow access from Hicks Rd to Brookton Highway.
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Proposal: Cancel, Rezone and Dispose of Reserve 26826 – 15 Gemsarna Cres Kelmscott
Submissions: Seven submissions opposed the proposal. Key issues raised included the use of the
reserve for safe access to shops, a bus stop and a telephone box on Brookton Highway. Residents
identified that alternative routes do not have footpaths and would involved increased travel along
the side of Brookton Highway. The use of the area by children and adults for recreation was also
identified in submissions. A number of residents access the rear of their properties through the
reserve, and indicate that there have never been undesirable activities taking place in the reserve.
The value of the reserve for creating a sense of low-density housing was identified in
submissions.
A further submission was received in September 2005. This submission emphasised the lack of
community support for the proposal (from the two submitters), the good accessibility and
surveillance of the area for the local community (in preference to Reserve 2121), and the
preference for crossing Brookton Highway to access the shops via the reserve on Gemsarna
Crescent (in preference to Reserve 2121 with regards to safety). The aesthetic benefit of the
reserve to the local residents was also detailed.
Response: Alternative access for walkers to shops and bus stops along Brookton Highway can
be achieved via Gemsarna Crescent, or through Reserve 2121 at the corner of Gemsarna Cres
and Scott Rd (see Location Map 3). City of Armadale Technical Services staff have assessed
sight lines at Brookton Highway street frontage of Reserve 26826 and at Reserve 2121, and
determined that there is not a significant difference in the ability to see oncoming traffic (Figure
5, 6, 7 and 8 illustrate). However, in order to cross Brookton Highway through Reserve 2121,
construction of a small bridge structure over the open drain may be required. This could be
funded from the sale of Reserve 26826 (15 Gemsarna Cres Kelmscott).

Figure 5 & 6 – Sight lines along Brookton Highway from Reserve 26826
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Figure 6 and 7 – Sight lines along Brookton Highway from Reserve 2121
Individuals who indicated that they use the reserve for access to shops on Brookton Highway
would have an increased travel distance of 150, 64, 47, 41 and 17 metres if Reserve 26826 were
closed. On average, the travel distance along Brookton Highway for residents would increase
from 80 metres to approximately 150 metres (average across routes).
Alternative public open space is available less than 70 metres away. This recreational area
(Reserve 2121 vested in the City for recreation) is 3.8 ha in size in comparison to the 0.2 ha size
of Reserve 26826. Upgrades to Reserve 2121 (Migrant) park are proposed utilising funds
generated through the sale of public open space within this precinct (see section titled: Proposal
for the use of Funds Generated).
The land is currently zoned R10. Under draft TPS 4, this land would be remain as R10 with
development potential for two single dwellings up to R25, which would allow applications for
up to 4 group dwellings.
There are currently no formed footpaths along either the existing or alternative routes to the
shops on Brookton Highway.
The reserve does not appear to attract undesirable uses, and appears well maintained.
Consideration of drainage infrastructure requirements for the land should occur at the time when
a development application is received.
Recommend Council cancel, rezone and dispose of Reserve 26826, 15 Gemsarna Cres
Kelmscott.
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Proposal: Cancel, Rezone and Dispose of Reserve 32225 of 17 Bromfield Drive Kelmscott
Submissions: One submission opposed the proposal. Key issues raised include the use of the
reserve to access Cope Place, the use of the reserve by children and adults for recreation, and
value of the reserve for native flora and fauna.
Response: Whilst Reserve 32225 contains a number of remnant grass trees, they are not part of a
functioning natural bushland. It is recognised they are of value to the native birds, reptiles and
insects that may be utilising these trees for habitat. However, an area with degraded vegetation
such as Reserve 32225 is unlikely to be managed by the City as a natural area.
The reserve is steeply sloped. Access between Bromfield Drive and Cope Place is difficult as a
result of this slope. Alternative public open space is available at the corner of Morrison Dr and
Hamersley St, approximately 450 metres further than the Bromfield Dr street frontage of
Reserve 32225 (see Location Map 3).
Reserve 32225 is zoned R5 under TPS2 and will remain R5 under draft TPS4.
Recommend Council cancel, rezone and dispose of Reserve 32225, 17 Bromfield Drive
Kelmscott.

Proposal: Cancel, Rezone & Dispose of Reserve 28218, 3244 Albany Hwy Mt Nasura
Submissions: One submission in opposition to the proposal was received on behalf of Wirra Willa
Gardens. Key issues raised include the Council’s support for the development of Wirra Willa
Gardens as a low-key tourist site in draft TPS4, and the need to retain the reserve as a buffer to the
site. The potential of the reserve to be utilised as an access route between the Wirra Willa Gardens
and the Armadale Train Station was also identified. Wirra Willa Gardens are of the opinion that the
reserve provides an important vegetative link between their site that would be lost of the site were
to be developed. Concern over the suitability of the land for residential development was also
raised, as the land parcel is close to the intersection of Armadale Road, Albany Highway and South
West Highway.
Response: The City is currently developing a strategy for its gateways. In light of Reserve 28218
being located in close proximity to the intersection of Armadale Rd, South Western Highway and
Albany Highway - the City’s gateway (see Location Map 4), it is recommended that consideration
of Reserve 28218 be deferred until the City’s gateway project is complete.
Recommend Council defer consideration of Reserve 28218 until the City’s Gateways project
is complete.
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PROPOSAL FOR USE OF FUNDS GENERATED
Advice has been received from the Department for Planning and Infrastructure (Land Asset
Management) that in order to pursue cancellation of the reserves, the City of Armadale must
ultimately provide a business plan detailing how the funds raised are to be spent. Funds generated
must be used in the same precinct and must be utilised for upgrades to existing POS or purchase of
alternate POS.
As a component of the public consultation process, the City invited suggestions as to the use of
funds. Four submissions were received and are detailed below.
1) Upgrade of facilities at Reserve 27970 (bordered by Ranford, Kevin and Hamersley St)
Kelmscott.
2) Upgrade of facilities – Reserve 28746 (bordered by Millen St, Carrigg Cres and Bamlett
St) Mt Nasura.
3) Upgrade facilities at Reserve 31963, 28 Lefroy Rd Mt Nasura.
4) Upgrade of facilities at Reserve 27337, Cnr Wandoo St and Parker Ave Mt Nasura.
Estimates of land values are indicated below. It is expected that if the disposal of reserves were to
proceed as recommended in this report, approximately $1.3 million will be generated. Costs in the
order of 5 to 10% of the income will be incurred to generate the funds.
Reserve proposed to be disposed

Estimated
value
Reserve 31693 - 28 Lefroy Rd Mt Nasura
$160,000
Reserve 29937 - 15 Wandoo St Mt Nasura
$125,000
Reserve 28364 – Millen St Mt Nasura
$180,000
Portion of Reserve 30253 (opposite Kevin Rd Kelmscott) Hicks Rd $450,000
Kelmscott
Reserve 26826 – 15 Gemsarna Cres Kelmscott
$150,000
Reserve 32225 of 17 Bromfield Drive Kelmscott
$250,000
TOTAL
$1,315 000
With due consideration to the availability of POS, suitability for use, requirements for upgrades and
to public suggestions for the use of funds, officers have generated a proposal for the use of funds
that may become available through this process (listed below, not in priority order).
Option
Upgrade facilities at
Reserve
38112
(Ranford
Rd
and
Hamersley St).

Rationale
Identified as a suggestion in
three public submissions.
Close to a reserve proposed
for disposal.

Estimated cost
Playground = $40,000,
Seating = $5,000,
Bollards and gate = $10,000,
Tree planting = $5,000
Total = $60,000
Install path through Identified as a potential trail Upgrade firebreaks = $5,000
Reserve 35371 off with aesthetic values in the Install limestone paths = $10,000
Carawatha Avenue to POS Strategy Report but has Herbicide treat = $2,000
increase accessibility.
poor access.
Bollard and gate = $3,000
Total = $20,000
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Upgrade facilities at
Migrant Park (Reserve
2121)
including
playground equipment,
interpretive
signage
and landscaping.
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Rationale
Part of a potential trail to
across the Canning River.
Large open space close to
small reserve proposed for
disposal. Good surveillance
and access with existing
playground
facilities
requiring upgrades.

Upgrade
playground Close to reserve proposed for
equipment at Reserve disposal. Suggestion derived
28746 & 28899 (off during the public consultation
Millen St).
process.
Upgrade facilities at
Reserve 38112, 27970
& 30253 including
provision of paths,
seating, bridge to cross
the
watercourse.
Beautification of the
reserve
through
revegetation of a winter
stream.
Upgrade facilities at
Reserve 27337 cnr
Wandoo St and Parker
Ave.

Close to reserve proposed for
disposal. Suggestion derived
during the public consultation
process. Linear open space
with access to the highway
and good street frontage.

10 OCTOBER 2005
Estimated cost
Playground = $20,000
Information shelters/ paving with site
history = $12,000
Bollard and gate = $12,000
BBQ’s & Lights = $20,000
Seating = $7,500
Drinking fountain = $4,500
Bore/ reticulation = $50,000
Landscaping = $30,000
Concrete walk/cycle paths = $40,000
Tree planting = $20,000
Park signs (3) = $3,500
Small culvert = $2,000
Total = $221,000
Playground = $40,000
Concrete path = $10,000
Drinking Fountain = $4,500
Park signs (2) = $2,000
Total = $56,500
Bridge over creek = $30,000
Paths = $10,000
Streamlining of creek = $20,000
Total = $60,000

Close to reserve proposed for Concrete path (Albany Hwy to
disposal.
Wandoo St) = $10,000
Tree planting = $10,000
Site cleanup = $10,000
Seating = $2,000
Total = $32,000
Complete works at
Total = $180,000
Derry Avenue Reserve
as
per
Landscape
Concept plan.
Upgrade playground/
Upgrade playground/ facilities =
facilities at Reserve
$30,000
35763,
Carawatha
Total = $30,000
Avenue
and
Blackwood Drive Mt
Nasura.
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Upgrade facilities at
Peaceful
Ponds
Reserve 35687 Mt
Nasura
TOTAL
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Estimated cost
Picnic shelters = $20,000
Seats = $2,000
Interpretive Signage = $20,000
Total = $42,000
$702,000

Proposals for the use of funds equate to an estimated cost of $700,000, which would allow these
options (and others) to be further progressed to utilise the funds available.
Once funds generated through the sale of public open space are obtained by the City of Armadale,
exact allocation of funds to projects that enhance public open space within the precinct (but in line
with the Department for Planning and Infrastructure guidelines) will be dealt with through
budgetary processes.
CONTINUATION OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PUBLIC OPEN SPACE STRATEGY
It is proposed to consider and provide a report to Council with recommendations for the final stage
(Stage 7) of the public open space strategy by the end of 2005. Following public consultation for
Stage 7, an amendment to Town Planning Scheme No. 4 will be presented to Council for initiation
to implement the necessary rezoning arising from Stages 6 and 7.
Following gazettal of Town Planning Scheme No. 4, officers will commence disposal of reserves
from Stage 1 of the public open space strategy and develop a business plan for Council’s
consideration.
OPTIONS
Council has the option to proceed in accordance with the recommendations of this report, or reconsider recommendations in regard to the disposal of reserves or use of funds generated.
CONCLUSION
Public advertising of Stage 6 of the Public Open Space Strategy is now complete.
In light of previous Council resolution (CS10/47/10), vesting of a number of reserves in the
Canning River and Foothills Precinct (3) will now be accepted or transferred to other agencies,
resulting in a net increase of 18.9 hectares of public open space to the precinct.
Thirty-four submissions were received in response to public advertising (as summarised in
Attachment 4 of this report). Summaries of submissions and officer responses to the key issues
raised are presented for consideration.
The disposal of reserves as recommended in this report is estimated to generate in the order of $1.3
million dollars, to be utilised for the purpose of improving other public open space in the precinct.
Officers have identified a number of options for the use of these funds.
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RECOMMEND
That Council:a. cancel Reserve 31693 on Lefroy St Mt Nasura, rezone and sell for
residential development.
b. cancel, rezone, and dispose of Reserve 29937 on Wandoo St Mt Nasura
for residential development, and refer the matter of the long-term
preservation of the wandoo tree that occupies the verge to the City’s
Heritage Advisory Committee for consideration.
c. cancel, rezone and sell portion of Reserve 30253 that consists of Lot 90,
245 and 213 for residential development, whilst retaining a public
access way no less than 10 metres in width to allow access from Hicks
Rd to Brookton Highway.
d. cancel, rezone and dispose of Reserve 26826, 15 Gemsarna Cres
Kelmscott.
e. cancel, rezone and dispose of Reserve 32225 17 Bromfield Drive
Kelmscott.
f. cancel, rezone and sell reserve 28364, 15 Millen St Mt Nasura for
residential development.
g. defer consideration of Reserve 28218 until the City’s Gateways project is
complete.
Moved Cr _______________
Carried/Lost ( )
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ARMADALE VISITOR CENTRE AND THE HERITAGE COUNTRY TOURISM
ASSOCIATION – TOURISM OPTIONS
WARD

ALL

FILE REF:

ORG/2

DATE

20 September 2005

REF

CA

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

Executive Director
Community Services

In Brief:
This Community Services item is brought to City Strategy as
a matter of urgency. It provides additional information in
relation to Council’s prior resolution C84/8/05 to assume
responsibility for the management and operation of the
Armadale Visitor Centre, including the employment of all
staff at the Centre, and specifically provides details of cost
estimates associated with that decision, for Council’s
consideration.
It is recommended that Council
• (a) take on the management and operation of the
Armadale Visitor Centre, including the employment of
all staff, noting the likely, unbudgeted, increase in
expenditure of $20,000 in 2005/06 and each year
thereafter.
• (b) acknowledge that part (a) of this recommendation
will require an allocation of $20,000 per annum from the
2006-2007 Budget for the ongoing operation of the
Armadale Visitor Centre which is not currently
accommodated within the City’s 15 Year Financial Plan.

Tabled Items
Nil
Officer Interest Declaration
Nil
Strategic Implications
Facilitate a wide range of social and cultural experiences
Promote and market the city, locally, nationally and internationally
Legislation Implications
Nil
Council Policy/Local Law Implications
Nil
Budget/Financial Implications
Current annual allocation for Tourism within the City’s 2005/06 Budget and 15 Year Financial
Plan is $60,000. The report recommendation will result in a $20,000 over expenditure of the
2005-06 annual budget and impose a $20,000 per annum unfunded expense commitment in the
15 Year Financial Plan.
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Consultation
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director Corporate Services
BACKGROUND
At the August 2005 Community Services Committee, a report on the status of the Heritage
Country Tourism Association (HCTA) and the Armadale Visitor Centre was presented and
considered in some detail.
For the benefit of considering this matter the Committee discussion and resolution of Council
have been included below;
Committee Discussion
Committee discussed the matter at length and agreed that the City should assume
management and operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre, including the employment of
all staff. Committee agreed that the focus of the Visitor Centre should be on ‘visitor
servicing’ and marketing/promotion of the City, with local businesses and organisations
using the Centre on a ‘fee for service’ basis. Committee was of the view that a “Tourism
Advisory Committee” or similar body was not required at this time and that it would
await the outcome of the negotiations with the HCTA in relation to its future role.
Committee resolved to amend part (b) of the recommendation to reflect Committee
discussion.
C84/8/05

RESOLUTION
That Council:
a.

Assume the management and operation of the Armadale Visitor
Centre, including the employment of all staff.

b.

Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate with the out
going HCTA Board as to its future role.

DETAILS OF PROPOSAL
The proposal relates to part (a) of the above resolution and informs Council of the likely
financial impacts of assuming the management and operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre
including the employment of all staff. It also highlights a number of associated matters that
require consideration as part of the operation of the Centre.
Council’s resolution (C170/11/04), acknowledged both the work of the HCTA to date and that
their ongoing viability will only be maintained if Council continues to support the Armadale
Visitor Centre. In addition it also supported an increase in financial contribution to the HCTA of
$20,000 and in doing so determined to take on a greater role in the management and operation of
the Centre.
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Since that resolution was adopted two important developments have taken place;
1) the HCTA lease on the Visitor Centre premises expired on 30 June 2005, and
2) HCTA members gave support to the proposal that Council take over operations of the
Visitor Centre at its General Meeting on 10 March 2005 and reaffirmed that decision at
their Annual General Meeting on Wednesday 21 September. This matter will again be
discussed at the first ordinary Board meeting on Thursday 13 October 2005.
COMMENT
Analysis
As was reported to Council in September 2005, with Council taking on responsibility for the
management and operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre from the HCTA, the following
administrative matters will be acted upon by the City:
o A Position Description has been developed for the Visitor Centre Coordinator
position and submitted to the Chief Executive Officer for approval.
o Internal reporting mechanisms have been determined with the Visitor Centre
Manager reporting to the City’s Manager Libraries and Heritage within the
Community Services Directorate.
o The Visitor Centre volunteer role will be administered under Council’s guidelines
with appropriate Volunteer Agreements signed. The relationship with the Arts and
Crafts Group, who is the core volunteer group, will be revisited as it anticipated that
the commission on Arts and Crafts sales, currently received by the HCTA, will in
future be received by Council.
o Responsibility for maintenance and development of the current HCTA website.
o Responsibility for all costs associated with the Armadale Visitor Centre, Bert Tyler
Vintage Museum and Replica Post Office will be transferred to the City at a date to
be determined (Note: electricity, cleaning and other costs common to the City’s lease
agreements have been the responsibility of the HCTA under the now expired lease).
o Responsibility for the administration of the on-line booking system.
In addition, the following issues will require consideration and resolution prior to the successful
transition and resumption by the City of the Visitor Centre;
•

Development of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the HCTA
o A draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was provided with the August
2005 Agenda item. The HCTA has already held its AGM and will seek to amend
their Constitution (if required) and continue their work in the area of Tourism. As
part of their future work it has been indicated that the HCTA will seek to work
with the City and may move to increase their Board membership with the
inclusion of the Centre Coordinator. The City will need to determine what it
requires of the MOU.
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•

Finalisation of a Position Description for the Visitor Centre Coordinator
o Using information from other Visitor Centres and including the current position
description used by the HCTA, a draft Position Description has now been
submitted to the Chief Executive Officer for approval. Given the previous
comments by the Community Services Committee and Council the Position
Description (PD) reflects a focus primarily on the areas of visitor servicing and
management of the Visitor Centre.

•

Property and Management Issues
o A number of property related matters will need to be addressed including
insurance, property management, cleaning, IT connections with the City, linking
with the Authority finance system and e-mail server, management reporting
arrangements, and handover issues. Some of these matters will be resolved over
the next few months and some will need the involvement of the appointed
Coordinator.

•

Centre Volunteers
o The Centre currently operates with a roster of volunteers and this will probably
need to remain as part of the transition to the City’s management. In addition, the
volunteers currently use the Centre to sell their local crafts and as part of doing
this volunteer their time to support the operation of the Centre. When the City
officially resumes management of the Centre we will need to review and set in
place a regime for volunteer management including roles and responsibilities,
accountability, training, screening, insurance etc…

•

Outstanding Grant funds
o Currently the HCTA have three outstanding grant applications, one for an online
bookings system through WATC, one for internal refurbishment and fit out of the
Centre (OMCF) and one for an extension of the Heritage and Harvest Festival in
March 2006 i.e. Autumn in Armadale (OMCF). In addition, it is understood the
ARA has now pledged an additional $10,000 for the Autumn in Armadale
project. The HCTA have indicated that, if approved, they will retain the Festival
grant and ARA contribution and administer it themselves whilst the other two
grants are for physical alterations and improvements at the Centre and will be
either carried out prior to the City resuming control or transferred to the City if
approved.

•

Local Chambers
o The HCTA have recently increased their Board membership to include a
representative from the Local Chambers. In discussions between the HCTA and
Local Chambers they have recently agreed to have a local Chambers staff
member based in Armadale and has been negotiating with the HCTA to use part
of the Visitor Centre as their base/office. This is a matter that will need to be
further negotiated as part of the City’s resumption and management of the Centre.
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•

Marketing and Promotion
o Marketing and promotion of the Centre and new management structure will be
important in the first 12 months, including promotion of new services (such as
online bookings), and recruitment and retention of new and existing members.
The Centre website will also need to be maintained and will need links to and
from the City’s own site. In addition the Centre will need to form part of the
City’s overall marketing plan.

•

Fundraising and Events
o Whilst the Centre currently undertakes minimal fundraising it does have some
capacity to do so however these aspects will now need to be carried out in
conjunction with the City’s Events Program and other activities within the region.

•

Timeframes and Transitional Arrangements
o As indicated above the transition period over the next six (6) months will be a
disruptive and potentially difficult time and the two most critical elements will be
the development of the MOU and the selection and appointment of the
Coordinator. Most other matters will fall out from these two actions. The HCTA
Annual General Meeting took place on Wednesday 21 September 2005 and
supported Council’s position in relation to the Visitor Centre. This matter will
again be discussed at the first ordinary Board meeting on Thursday 13 October
2005 at which time they will consider amending their Constitution as appropriate.
The meeting will also discuss matters related to the HCTA’s future role in
Tourism in the district and handover of the Visitor Centre.
o In addition the current officer at the Centre has a contract with the HCTA which
requires 4 weeks notice on either side. This individual will be encouraged to
apply for the new role by the HCTA and hopefully, regardless of outcome, will
remain in place until the selection and appointment process is completed.

•

Centre Finances
o For the last two financial years the HCTA has operated the Centre with a budget
of approximately $60,000 of which the City has provided $50,000 and the Centre
has generated other revenues (casual sales and members fees) of $10,000. Of that
revenue, the major expenditures have been salaries/wages $35,000, cleaning and
utilities $7,000, insurance $8,000, telephone $3,000.

Given the nature of the position, the duties and responsibilities proposed and the fact that the
individual appointed will be required to work after hours and at weekends and will also need to
be able to get out into the community to network, attend meetings and functions and meet with
existing and prospective businesses and service providers, it has been recommended that the
Centre employ a Level six (6) Coordinator under the Local Government Officers Award. It has
also been recommended that the CEO consider commuting use of a Council vehicle as part of a
package for the Coordinator. Unfortunately the City currently has no vehicles available and so it
has been requested that consideration be given to the purchase of an additional vehicle to be
included in Council’s light vehicle fleet. (Note: the budget summary below reflects this cost).
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Given the above information, the following is a breakdown of the likely Revenues and
Expenditures for the Armadale Visitor Centre, together with an indication of the possible
shortfall in funding.
Revenue

2005-06 full
year costs
City of Armadale

$60,000

2005-06
commencing
from Nov
2005
$60,000

Other

$10,000

$5,000

$10,000

$70,000

$65,000

$70,000

Salaries (including on-costs)

$55,000

$40,000

$55,000

Vehicle purchase -set up = $22k pa,
$2.5k thereafter and operating $4k pa

$26,000

$26,000

$6,500

Administration -utilities, insurance,
stationary, printing etc.
Maintenance (cleaning, repairs etc)

$10,000

$8,000

$10,000

$10,000

$8,000

$10,000

Program/Activities

$10,000

$4,0000

$10,000

$111,000

$86,000

$91,500

-$41,000

-$21,000

-$21,500

Sub total

2006-07 and
15 Year Plan
$60,000

Expenditure

Sub total
Net shortfall

The City currently has an annual allocation in the 15 Year Forward Financial Plan of $60,000 for
Tourism. Assuming that the Centre can continue to generate revenues of $10,000 this will
provide an operating budget of $70,000. The initial purchase of a new vehicle increases the
establishment costs by $22,000 for 2005-06 however based upon a changeover cycle of three
years the amount that would be required to maintain the vehicle into the future will be in the
order of $2,500 per annum. Therefore the annual expenditure required to operate the Centre will
be approximately $90,000, representing an increase in the current 15 Year Forward Plan
estimates of $20,000 per annum.
In addition there may be some initial set up costs such as IT connections the detail of which are
yet to be confirmed. In the future, and if the City wishes to attain the Level 1 Visitor Status from
the WATC, an additional part-time employee may also be required at a cost of approximately
$30,000, increasing the overall Centre expenditure to $120,000. Clearly, at this point the Centre
will be seeking to generate more income, perhaps through subscriptions to local business.
Given that there will be a delay in commencing in 2005/06 it is probable that the shortfall in the
first year will be in the order of $20,000 (as per the above table). This is based upon the
assumptions that there is the full set up costs for the vehicle purchase, the Centre Coordinator
does not commence until November 2005 and there is minimal project/program expenditure in
the first year.
From 2006-07 onwards the operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre will create a budget
shortfall of approximately $20,000 per annum and this will require an adjustment in the 15 Year
Forward Plan accordingly. It is recommended that the estimated overspend of $20,000 in 2005-
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06 be acknowledged by Council and considered as a variation to the 2005-06 Budget as part of
the six (6) monthly budget review at which point all budget variations can be considered.
Currently the Property Services budget for the Visitor Centre is minimal and so the $10,000
admin/operating and $10,000 maintenance will both need to be provisioned for in future years.
The $10,000 of program/activity funds could be funded through an increase in the City’s
marketing and economic development allocations as it is likely that the Centre will play an
integral role in these activities for the City.
A priority for the Coordinator will be to focus on increasing revenues from memberships and
sponsorships in the first 12 – 24 months, as well as seeking grant and State Government
(WATC) funds to supplement the Centre’s operations, thus providing time for the City to
position itself for any increase in costs. It is also recommended that both the Armadale
Redevelopment Authority and West Australian Tourism Commission be formally approached in
regard to financially contributing to the ongoing operation of the Centre.
Options
The following options are provided for Committee’s consideration:
1. That the City take on responsibility for the operation and management of the Armadale
Visitor Centre, acknowledging that the estimated cost of operation will exceed the 15
Year Plan allocation of $60,000 by approximately $20,000 and
2. That, based upon the above information, the City not assume responsibility for the
Armadale Visitor Centre at this time, but rather maintains and/or increases its
contribution to the HCTA to ensure that it remains viable. This is not recommended as it
is contrary to Council’s previous resolution.
3. Close the Armadale Visitor Centre.
Option 1 is recommended.
Conclusion
Option one places Council in the position of having responsibility for direct servicing of the
tourism industry. However, as has been previously explored and demonstrated, if Council does
not take on management of the Armadale Visitor Centre, it will in all probability not remain
viable. This will result in an unbudgeted annual expenditure of approximately $20,000.
Reports from many other sources, e.g. The City of Joondalup Tourism Development Plan, the
Mandurah Visitor Centre Strategic Review, and the Western Australian Tourism Commission
Visitor Servicing Study, as well as the many other tourism related studies and reports produced
by various governments and departments, all allude to tourism as a growth industry with a strong
connection to economic development. The WATC’s recommendation that Armadale be afforded
Level 1 Visitor Centre status bodes well for the future of tourism in the district. For these
reasons it is recommended that Council support the recommendation that it take on the role of
management and operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre.
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RECOMMEND
That Council:
a. take on the management and operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre,
including the employment of all staff, acknowledging the likely,
unbudgeted, increase in expenditure of $20,000 in 2005/06 and
considering this as a variation to the 2005-06 Budget as part of the six (6)
monthly budget review.
b. acknowledge that part (a) of this recommendation will require the
allocation of an amount of $20,000 per annum from 2006-2007 for the
ongoing operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre which is not currently
accommodated within the City’s 15 Year Financial Plan.
c. pursuant to Section 6.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 authorise the
following expenditure:
• Purchase of (1) motor vehicle (sedan) at a total cost of $22,000; and
amend the 2005-2006 Annual Budget as follows:
Expenditure – Purchase of a Motor Vehicle (sedan) - increase by
$22,000
Expenditure – Contribution to Tourism - - decrease by $22,000.
d. formally approach both the Armadale Redevelopment Authority and
West Australian Tourism Commission in regard to financially
contributing to the ongoing operation of the Armadale Visitor Centre.
ABSOLUTE MAJORITY RESOLUTION REQUIRED FOR PART (c)
Moved Cr _____________
Motion Carried/Lost (….)
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ASSET MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME (WAAMI)
WARD
FILE REF:

All

DATE

10TH Oct 2005

REF

BS

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

MTS

In Brief:
 The Western Australian Asset Management Improvement
Programme (WAAMI) started in early 2005 with a pilot
programme for 6 Councils.
 City of Armadale is now able to take part following the
appointment of the Asset Management Coordinator.
 Discusses programme advantages.
 Recommend
That Council:
1. Note that the City has joined the West Australian Asset
Management Improvement Programme.
2. Note that all Councillors are invited to the WAAMI
Workshop session on the evening of Wednesday 7th
December 2005 (6.15pm – 8pm) and make every effort to
support and participate in the programme.

Tabled Items
Nil.
Officer Interest Declaration
Nil
Strategic Initiatives
Providing Physical Infrastructure & Caring for the Natural Environment
Develop and implement long-term asset management programmes
Progress new and enhanced facilities to meet community needs
Developing Our Organisation
Improve the overall financial viability of Council
Legislation Implications
The Western Australian Asset Management Improvement (WAAMI) programme will greatly
assist the Council in demonstrating a minimum level of process for asset management and hence
help avoid future litigation from non-feasance.
Council Policy/Local Law Implications
General assessment has not revealed any applicable Policies/Local Laws.
Budget/Financial Implications
Programme to be funded as part of on-going asset management development
Consultation
Nil
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BACKGROUND
Over the past few years other States, such as South Australia, Tasmania and Victoria, have
introduced a state-wide approach aimed at increasing Local Governments awareness of asset
management and improving the capability of Councils to undertake their programmes in
managing assets. The ‘Step by Step’ mentoring programme in South Australia grew out of a
recommendation of the SA Local Government Infrastructure Study, “A Wealth of
Opportunities” to select two pilot councils in guiding other councils through the development of
Asset Management Strategies and Asset Management Plans. The programme quickly became
highly successful and was a starting point from which the more condensed Victorian Step
Programme was developed.
The Institute of Public Works Engineering Australia (IPWEA) is working with the Western
Australian Local Government Association (WALGA), Department of Local Government (DLG)
and Local Government Managers Association (LGMA) to develop an asset management
development scheme called Western Australian Asset Management Improvement (WAAMI)
programme. As a consequence, six (6) Councils nominated to be part of a Steering Group to
“pilot” this Western Australian approach. CT Management Group were engaged to assist and
facilitate the Steering Group, including preparation of a WAAMI Programme Framework,
tools/guides and to “roll out” the programme to the pilot Councils over a 12 month period. The
Steering Groups role was to develop the framework and monitor the “roll out” of the programme
so that it may then be developed further to provide a “State-wide” approach.
The City intended to join the pilot programme earlier in the year, but as the Asset Management
Coordinators role was vacant, felt that it would be better to join once the position was filled.
This is now the case and the City has joined the WAAMI programme.

DETAILS OF PROPOSAL
The principal objective of asset management is to provide assets and services at a desired level
of service, in the most cost effective way and in a manner that is sustainable for current and
future communities. The WAAMI programme primarily aims to create greater awareness and
stewardship at the Council and Corporate Management level of asset management and assist
Councils to achieve a minimum standard of asset management process within a 12 month period.
The programme aims to assist individual Councils to improve their overall asset management
capability and as a consequence, helps improve the Council’s asset management quality level
generally. Additionally, the programme will also score the City’s level of asset management
practices and processes and benchmark these against the other participating Councils.
The programme is facilitated by the CT Management Group who will spend one day at the City
as part of the initiation of the programme. The first workshop day is booked in on Wednesday 7th
December 2005 (6.15pm – 8pm) and will require the attendance of the CEO and Directors for
the first morning and last evening sessions. Results from the day will then be presented to
Council in the evening and the attendance of all Councillors, where possible, is crucial.
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CONCLUSION
The WAAMI Step Programme is seen by the Technical Services Directorate as being an
important tool for the City to increase awareness of asset management and improve the way in
which Council manages all of its assets to ensure long term sustainability. As custodians of the
City’s assets, the support and participation of Councillors in the WAAMI programme is essential
to ensure it success. The programme gives external advice and support so that the City can work
towards delivering an optimal level of process in order to demonstrate effective asset
stewardship.

RECOMMEND
That Council:
a. note that the City has joined the West Australian Asset Management
Improvement Programme (WAAMI).
b. note that all Councillors are invited to the WAAMI Workshop session on
the evening of Wednesday 7th December 2005 (6.15pm – 8pm) and make
every effort to support and participate in the programme.
Moved Cr _____________
Motion Carried/Lost (
)
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KELMSCOTT CHILD HEALTH CENTRE
WARD
FILE REF:
DATE

River
A65002

REF

JNG

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

EDTS

5 Oct 2005

In Brief:
 Council at its meeting on 19th September resolved that the
feasibility of the retaining the Kelmscott Child Health Centre be
examined.
 The ARA’s Kelmscott Steering Committee’s advice is that both
the Kelmscott Library and Child Health Centre (CHC) are not
required for redevelopment of the Kelmscott precinct and may be
demolished.
 ARA have also further advised that following a referral to the
Heritage Council WA, the Council has advised that while the CHC
may have some cultural heritage significant it was unlikely to meet
the threshold for entry on the State Register of Heritage Places.
 A number of options have been examined to determine the
feasibility of retaining the CHC and these are outlined/discussed in
the report.
 The recommended Option for Council to approve is Option-D, i.e.
to formally record the details of the Kelmscott Child Health Centre
building for heritage purposes and to demolish the building and
recycle or dispose of all materials.

Tabled Items
Nil.
Officer Interest Declaration
Nil.
Strategic Implications
Developing our City – Implement the Kelmscott District Centre Strategy Plan by Developing
and implementing outcomes of the Kelmscott Enquiry by Design with the assistance of the
ARA.
Legislation Implications
Nil
Council Policy/Local Law Implications
Nil.
Budget/Financial Implications
Potentially significant implications on the 15 Year Plan
$75k allocated in 2005/2006 budget for the demolition and removal of the old Kelmscott Library
and Child Health Centre and subsequent rehabilitation of the site.
Consultation
Ashton and Associates Quantity Surveyors
T Holton Architect
D Nylund House Transporters
Brajkovich Demolition Pty Ltd
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BACKGROUND
At its meeting of 19 September 2005 Council considered a report on the Long Term Strategic
Planning for the Kelmscott Library and CHC and resolved as follows (CS70/9/05 refers):That Council:
a.

agree that the existing library west of Albany Highway be demolished following
its appropriate recording.

b.

delay any action in regard to the Kelmscott Child Health Centre until the
feasibility of retaining the building, either by relocating to a more suitable
location or retention at its present location, can be established.

c.

advise the Perth Transport Authority of its acknowledgement in principle that the
site between Albany Highway and the Kelmscott station offers excellent planning
outcomes, but advise that any final agreement to commit to a library at that
location would be subject to a commercial comparison between a library at that
site and other opportunities that may emanate from (d) below.

d.

resolve to call for expressions of interest in providing Council a suitable library
facility within the Kelmscott Town Centre.

COMMENT
The Armadale Redevelopment Authority after its Kelmscott Steering Committee held on the 7
September resolved to advise the City that the Library and the Child Health Clinic buildings are
not required for the redevelopment of the Kelmscott precinct and can be demolished and the
sites landscaped on an interim basis. They further advised that the Child Health Clinic had beans
referred to the Heritage Council WA as part of the Government heritage disposal process. The
Heritage Council’s advice to the ARA was that at its meeting 29 July 2005, it was determined
that while the place may have some cultural heritage significance, it was unlikely that the place
would meet the threshold for entry on the State Register of Heritage Places.
DETAILS OF PROPOSAL
A number of options were developed to assist in the consideration of the feasibility of retaining
the Kelmscott Child Health Centre, either by retention at its present location, demolishing and
storing reclaimed materials for future rebuilding by others or relocating to a more suitable site.
The various options and first order costs are outlined below:
Option A
To retain the CHC building in its present location, make good
structurally and undertake refurbishment

$125,000 +/- 30%
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Option B
To relocate the CHC building intact to another location
Site works and refurbishment

$300,000 +/- 30%
$130,000 +/- 25%

Option C
To record, demolish CHC building and salvage materials
Storage and maintenance of salvaged materials
Rebuild the building in another location (by others)

$20,000
$2,000 per annum
$130,000 +/- 20%

Option D
To record and demolish the CHC building
Dispose of materials

$20,000
$5,000

The work involved in each Option is outlined below:OPTION A - To retain the CHC building in its present location would require:
•

Underpinning of existing limestone footings to control subsidence and cracking of brick walls

•

Remedial works to all cracked brick work and re-pointing of fretting mortar joints

•

Repair or replacement of timber stumps, bearers and flooring where necessary to provide an even
and stable floor

•

Existing doorways and other facilities to be made compliant with Access for People with
Disabilities

•

Overall refurbishment, ceilings, walls, roof, electrical and hydraulic services

OPTION B - To relocate the CHC building to another location would require the following
preparation and relocation works:
•

Extensive steel beam reinforcing to the bases of all brickwork walls both internally and
externally

•

Removal of internal timber flooring and substructure framing for access to inner leaves of
brickwork

•

Structural steel cross bracing internally to all walls and roof plane to keep structure in alignment

•

Brickwork cavities injected with high density polyurethane to maintain brickwork integrity

•

Disconnect all utility services and drainage

•

Once the above works are completed, steel beams will be required to be inserted through the
limestone footings to support the brick walls. These in turn are welded to major lifting beams,
which are hydraulically lifted onto multi-wheeled transport jinkers.

•

The proposed site would require clearing, site works and compaction for new concrete strip
footings to support the brick walls. New stumps and floor structure installed and services located.
Limestone footings provided to the perimeter of the building to replicate the original footings.

•

In addition all items listed above in option A, with the exception of underpinning of footings
would still be applicable, e.g. Refurbishment costs.
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OPTION C – To demolish and rebuild the CHC building in another location would require the
following preparation and re-building works:
•

Consultant required providing accurate measured drawings and photographic record of the
complete structure both internally and externally. This would include accurate details of
brickwork bond, detailed sills, header courses, ceilings windows, doors and joinery mouldings
etc.

•

Careful demolition of roof cladding and structure, brickwork and flooring, removal of all doors,
windows and frames and all hardware

•

Clean and stack brickwork, timbers and Terra-cotta tiles

•

Cut and seal all utility services and removal of sewerage services

•

Make good to site and leave in a safe state

OPTION D – To record and demolish the CHC building and dispose or recycle materials:
•

Consultant to provide accurate drawings and photographic record of the building, fulfilling
heritage requirements.

•

Demolition of building and disposal or recycle of materials

CONCLUSION
The City has already extended its original Budget allocation for the removal of the library and
child health centre and rehabilitation of the site to $75,000. Option-D and the first part of Option
C, demolish the building and store salvaged materials, could be achieved within the budget,
albeit with a reduction in the extent of site rehabilitation works.
Option-C relies on an interested group in the future raising the funds ($130,000) necessary to
reconstruct the building. This would entail Council storing the materials ($2000 p.a.) for an
indeterminate period.
It is suggested that the formal recording of the building satisfies the Heritage requirement for a
building of this significance and the cost of Options A and B cannot be justified.
Option-C could be acceptable to Council if reconstruction was funded by other parties.
The recommended Option is Option-D.
RECOMMEND
That Council approve Option-D, i.e.:
a.

to formally record the details of the Kelmscott Child Health Centre
building for heritage purposes ($20,000), and

b.

to demolish the building and recycle or dispose of all materials
($5,000).

Moved Cr ______________
Motion Carried/Lost (
)

CITY STRATEGY
COMMITTEE – Miscellaneous

44

10 OCTOBER 2005

BROOKDALE REDEVELOPMENT MASTER PLAN
WARD

:

ALL

FILE REF

:

PSC 18/1

DATE

:

6 Oct 2005

REF

:

RST

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

:

CEO

In Brief: Planning control of the Brookdale residential area (approx. 1500
ha of rural land) was transferred to the ARA in September 2003
with the intention that a Structure Plan be developed to guide
development.
 A Brookdale Redevelopment Steering Committee was formed in
mid-2004 with membership comprising of the ARA, CoA,
CSIRO, DPI, DoE & Water Corp. The role of CSIRO was
essential as it brought Brookdale under the banner of the Federal
Government’s “Healthy Country” initiative.
 The Steering Committee meets monthly at CSIRO, Wembley.
The City is also represented on both the Technical and Built-form
Working Groups (off-shoots of this Committee).
 Planning commenced with a Landscape Structure Plan developed
by UWA focussed on aesthetic and environmental outcomes.
 A key part of the design process involves total water-cycle
planning, working in cooperation with Water Corp and DoE. A
great deal of work undertaken in North Forrestdale and Southern
River areas is being integrated into the Brookdale Strategy.
 A number of consultant reports and studies have been
commissioned to advance the preparation of the Master Plan.
 Planning and studies for the Brookdale Project progressing with a
Budget of $1M for 2004/05 with an even greater amount
requested for 2005/06.
 Approx. 150ha of Brookdale is owned by DoHW Landstart
agency and in response to an advertisement for JV partners, both
Stocklands and Peet & Co have expressed interest.
 There are 9 phases to the Brookdale Redevelopment programme
and it is intended that Policies and Guidelines will be finalised by
Feb 2007. As crucial phases of the MasterPlan and Scheme are
completed they will be referred to Council for comment.
 It is recommended that Council receive this progress report.

Tabled Items
Nil.
Officer Interest Declaration
Nil.
Strategic Implications
4. Developing our City
Our aim is to balance the need of development with sustainable economic, social and
environmental objectives.
4.2.2
Working with the ARA on planning, structure and design guidelines for:
c)
Brookdale urban area
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Legislation Implications
Nil.
Council Policy / Local Law Implications
Nil.
Budget / Financial Implications
The City is contributing $18,000 p.a. over 3 years towards the Brookdale Drainage Study. No other
financial implications other than significant officer involvement in the technical evaluation and
planning process.
Consultation

Brookdale Masterplan Steering Committee (ARA, CSIRO, Water Corporation, DPI, DoE)

BACKGROUND
The Brookdale residential redevelopment area consists of some 1500 ha of predominantly rural land
bounded generally by the Tonkin highway, Armadale Road, Eight Road, Ninth Road, the railway
line and the City’s southern boundary. (Refer Brookdale Indicative MasterPlan overleaf).
Planning control of this area was transferred to the Armadale Redevelopment Authority in
September 2003 with the intention that a Structure Plan be developed to guide and commence
development in the coming decade.
In mid-2004 a Brookdale Redevelopment Steering Committee was formed by the ARA with
membership as follows:ARA Board Chairman
(Chair)
ARA Board member
ARA Executive Director
CoA – CEO
CSIRO
DPI
Water Corporation
DoE
Project Manager (ARA)
In a public bulletin issued earlier this year, the ARA outlined the vision for Brookdale as follows:-

The vision for Brookdale
The master plan for Brookdale envisages a diverse and vibrant residential area developed over 15 to 20
years for a population of up to 30,000 people. It will showcase the best possible practices in sustainable
urban development, including resource management, water-sensitive urban design and energy efficient
housing.
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Unlike the large and often featureless walled housing estates in other areas, innovative planning will
make the most of Brookdale’s rural character and natural assets - waterways, bushland, trees and views
to the hills. It will have a range of housing and lot types that appeal to a broad range of people, retain
historically significant elements and have strong links to the Armadale city centre.
Due to Brookdale’s high water table and other environmental considerations, a key focus for the ARA is
to determine the best development options to reduce costs and facilitate approval.
Brookdale will be carefully planned in stages, in consultation with the community, to grow into a traditional
neighbourhood with its own distinctive sense of place.

The planning team
The development of Brookdale is a partnership of Government, industry and the community. Partners
include the City of Armadale, CSIRO, Department of Environment, Water Corporation, Department for
Planning and Infrastructure and major landowners including the Department of Housing and Works,
Stockland and Peet & Company Ltd. It will be a model to guide development in similar water-sensitive
areas in WA and nationally.
The team involved in developing the Brookdale master plan include: scientists, engineers, urban
planners, academics, landscape architects, environmental experts and archaeologists. The ARA has also
engaged consultants with expertise in heritage conservation and social research.

Following some early Workshops held at the Ev Gribble Community Centre and CSIRO in
Wembley, the Steering Committee determined that a new approach would be taken in
developing the MasterPlan for Brookdale.
Planning was to commence with a Landscape Structure Plan developed by the University of
WA, away from the backdrop as standard urban development practices. The Plan was to be more
focussed on aesthetic and environmental outcomes, before the application of typical urban
planning aspects such as landuse, transport, built-form etc.
The role of CSIRO was essential to this approach, bringing new expertise towards resolution of
significant environmental and planning issues, but also bringing Brookdale under the banner of
the Federal Governments “Healthy Country” initiative.
Steering Committee Structure
The Steering Committee meets monthly at the CSIRO’s offices in Wembley, a central location
for all the agencies and consultant group reporting.
Beneath the Steering Committee a Technical Working Group, Sustainability Review Team and
Built-form Working Group were formed.
The City is represented on both the Technical and Built-form Working Group.
Total Water Cycle Planning
The environment and difficult drainage conditions have been the main reasons for lack of
interest in the development of Brookdale in the past.
A major focus of the new approach to Brookdale is to convert that constraint into an opportunity.
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Hence, a key part of the design process involves total water-cycle planning working in cooperation with the Water Corporation and Department of the Environment building on the work
undertaken in the Southern River Structure Planning exercise.
There is also a great deal of work undertaken in the North Forrestdale and Southern River areas
being integrated into the Brookdale Strategy.
Consultancy Studies
Under the oversight of the Steering Committee, numerous consultant reports and studies have
been commissioned to advance preparation of the Master Plan.
Examples of these are:










Landscape Planning
Urban Design
Aboriginal Heritage
European Heritage
Environmental Studies
Hydrological Studies
Brookdale Identity Study
Civil Engineering
Traffic / Transport
Community Consultation

Budget
Planning and Studies for the Brookdale Project are progressing with a Budget of approximately
$1M in 2004/05 and an even greater amount requested for 2005/06.
It is clear that neither Government agencies nor private landowners would have prefunded such
amounts to bring the project together and a good example of why the Redevelopment Authority
model was required.
Government Land
Approximately 150 ha of Brookdale is owned by the Department of Housing and Works
“Landstart” agency, who have advertised for prospective Joint Venture partners from the private
sector.
Both Stocklands and Peet & Co. have extensive holdings in the vicinity and have expressed
interest.
The State Government is currently considering expressions of interest and the possibility of
whether Landstart or LandCorp might represent the Government’s interest in the JV.
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Concept Plan and Built-form
The City will await with interest the outcomes of the current technical working groups
evaluation of the current concept, incorporating environmental “avenues” of swales and trees,
linking the existing streams and natural features of Brookdale.
These aspects will be reported in their own right at another time.
Redevelopment Programme
Phase 1
Phase 2
Phase 3

Sustainability objectives
Constraints and Opportunity Analysis
Local Area Implementation Planning Strategy
Strategic Environmental Assessment
Concept Plan
Redevelopment Scheme Amendment (mid-2006)
Public Review
Submission Review
Gazettal
Finalise Policies & Guidelines

Phase 4
Phase 5
Phase 6
Phase 7
Phase 8
Phase 9

Completed
Completed
50%
50%
50%
40%
July-Aug 2006
September 2006
November 2006
February 2007

CONCLUSION
The Brookdale redevelopment process is holding to its original programme of commencing
development in early 2007.
As the crucial phases of the Masterplan and scheme are completed they will be referred to
Council for comment.
Several briefing Workshops have been held at CSIRO as well as a number of presentations to
Brookdale landowners.
The CEO would welcome enquiries from the Council if there are areas in which Council might
seek further information.
This general report is submitted for Council’s information.

RECOMMEND
That the CEO’s report on progress of Brookdale Redevelopment MasterPlan
be received.
Moved Cr ___________
Motion Carried/Lost (…..)
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BUSINESS HOURS CHRISTMAS & NEW YEAR PERIOD
WARD
FILE REF:

All
STF/1

In Brief:

DATE

3 October
2005

This report presents for Council’s approval a Schedule of
Business Hours for the 2005/06 Christmas/New Year period.

REF

MH

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

CEO

Council Policy/Local Law Implications
Nil.
Budget/Financial Implications
Nil
Consultation
CEO, Executive Directors, Operational Managers, Western Australian Local Government
Association.

BACKGROUND
Council’s past practice regarding Christmas and New Year business hours has been to open for
business on all weekdays other than public holidays on Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Year’s
Day and close at 12 noon on Christmas Eve.
This year both Christmas Day 2005 and New Year’s Day 2006 fall on a Sunday. In Western
Australia, a public holiday will be observed for Christmas Day on both 25 December and
Monday 26 December. The observed day for Boxing day is Tuesday 27 December, and New
Year’s Day will be observed on Monday 2 January 2006.

COMMENTS
The following report recommends the City’s proposed business hours for the 2005/06 Christmas
/ New Year period for Council confirmation. Council will note that it is proposed that the field
staff function be held on Thursday, 22 December 2005 commencing at 1pm and the
administration staff function be held on Friday, 23 December 2005 commencing at 1pm. As a
result the Depot will close on Thursday, 22 December 2005 and Friday 23 December 2005 at 12
noon to allow staff to attend the Christmas function. The Administration Centre and Libraries
will close on Friday 23 December at 12noon to allow staff to attend the administration staff
Christmas function.
Council offices will be closed on Monday 26 December and Tuesday 27 December 2005, both
public holidays. Council offices will be open as usual for business between Wednesday 28
December and Friday 30 December 2005.
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Council offices will be closed for business on Monday 2 January 2006, a public holiday, and
reopen on Tuesday 3 January 2006 and service delivery levels will not be affected.
There will be advanced publicity given to the early closure of the Depot at 12 noon on Thursday
22 December and early closure of the Council Office and Libraries at 12 noon on Friday 23
December so as to better inform the public and thereby minimise the risk of customer
inconvenience.

CONCLUSION
Council will be open for business on all weekdays other than public holidays between Christmas
Day and New Year.

RECOMMEND
That Council approve the business hours for the 2005/06 Christmas and New
Year period, as shown in Schedule 1 overleaf.
Moved Cr ________________
Motion Carried/Lost (…..)

Schedule 1 – City of Armadale Business Hours for the 2005 Christmas/New Year period
Date

Depot

Libraries

Thurs 22.12.05
Fri 23.12.05
Sat 24.12.05
Sun 25.12.05
Mon 26.12.05 - Public Holiday
Tue 27.12.05 - Public Holiday
Wed 28.12.05

Admin
Office
8.15am – 4.45pm
8.15am – 12noon
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
8.15am – 4.45pm

7.30am – 12noon
7.30am – 12noon
Closed
Closed
Closed
Closed
7.30am – 5.00pm

Thur 29.12.05
Fri 30.12.05
Sat 31.12.05
Sun 01. 01.06 - New Year’s Day
Mon 02.01.06 - Public Holiday
Tue 03.01.06

8.15am – 4.45pm
8.15am – 4.45pm
Closed
Closed
Closed
8.15am – 4.45pm

7.30am – 5.00pm
7.30am – 5.00pm
Closed
Closed
Closed
7.30am – 5.00pm

9.30am – 8.00pm
9.30am – 12noon
9.00am – 12noon
Closed
Closed
Closed
Armadale Library
9.30am – 5.00pm
Kelmscott Library
9.30am – 8.00pm
Westfield Library
Closed
9.30am – 8.00pm
9.30am – 8.00pm
9.00am – 12noon
Closed
Closed
Armadale Library
9.30am – 8.00pm
Kelmscott Library
9.30am – 5.00pm
Westfield Library
9.30am – 8.00pm

Aquatic
Centre
6.00am – 8.00pm
6.00am – 8.00pm
7.00am – 6.00pm
Closed
9.00am – 8.00pm
6.00am – 8.00pm
6.00am – 8.00pm

Landfill

6.00am – 8.00pm
6.00am – 8.00pm
6.00am – 8.00pm
9.00am – 8.00pm
6.00am – 8.00pm
6.00am – 8.00pm

Open
Open
Open
Closed
Open
Open

Roleystone Green Waste Site: Open Saturday 24th December 8am – 4:45pm; Closed 25th December (Christmas day);
Open Saturday 31st December 8am – 4:45pm; Closed 1 January (New Year’s Day).
Museum/History House: Closed from Wednesday 21st December 2005 to Thursday 5th January 2006.

Open
Open
Open
Closed
Open
Open
Open

Waste
Collection
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
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COUNCILLORS’ ITEMS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

MEETING DECLARED CLOSED AT ____________

CITY STRATEGY COMMITTEE
SUMMARY OF “A” ATTACHMENTS
10 OCTOBER 2005
Attachment
No.

Subject

Page

A-1

List of Account Paid for the period 1 to 30 September
2005

55 - 73

A-2

Report on August Financials presented to the Council
meeting of 19 September 2005 via the CEO’s Report

74 - 82

A-3

Financial Report for the period 1st July to 31st August
2005-10-03

83 - 93

A-4

Summary of submissions received on Stage 6 of the
Public Open Space Strategy

94 - 96

A-5

2004-05 Annual Report

To be tabled at the
meeting
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LIST OF ACCOUNTS PAID
FOR THE PERIOD
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FINANCIAL REPORT –AUGUST 2005
WARD

:

ALL

FILE REF

:

FIN/1

DATE

:

14 September 2005

REF

:

AFM / NC

RESPONSIBLE
MANAGER

:

EDCorpS and
EMBS

In Brief:This Report presents:
 details and an explanation of the recent
amendments made to the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations, relating to
the preparation and presentation of City’s Monthly
Financial Report,



the City’s Monthly Financial Report as at 31st
August 2005

Tabled Items
Nil
Strategic Implications
Developing our Organisation:
Improve the environment for effective governance;
Improve the overall financial viability of Council.
Legislation Implications
Local Government Act 1995 – Part 6 – Division 3 – Reporting on Activities and Finance
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations – Part 4 – Financial Reports
Council Policy/Local Law Implications
Nil
Budget/Financial Implications
The Statement of Financial Activity as presented refers and explains.
Consultation
Directors and Managers relevant to the reported instances of ‘material variance’.

BACKGROUND
The Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations have been amended with effect
from 1st July 2005 requiring, amongst other matters, local governments to prepare monthly
financial statements in a new format.
The amended Regulations provide as follows:
34. Financial activity statement report – s.6.4
1. A local government is to prepare each month a statement of financial activity
reporting on the sources and applications of funds, as set out in the annual
budget under regulation 22(1)(d), for that month in the following detail:
(a) annual budget estimates, taking into account any expenditure incurred
for an additional purpose under section 6.8(1)(b) or (c);
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(b) budget estimates to the end of the month to which the statement refers;
(c) actual amounts of expenditure, revenue and income to the end of the
month to which the statement relates;
(d) material variances between the comparable amounts referred to in
paragraphs (b) and (c); and
(e) the net current assets at the end of the month to which the statement
refers.
2.

Each statement of financial activity is to be accompanied by documents
containing –
(a) an explanation of the composition of the net current assets of the month to
which the statement relates, less committed assets and restricted assets;
(b) an explanation of each of the material variances referred to in subregulation (1)(d); and
(c) such other supporting information as is considered relevant by the local
government

3.

The information in a statement of financial activity may be shown –
(a) according to nature and type classification;
(b) by program; or
(c) by business unit.

4.

A statement of financial activity, and the accompanying documents referred to in
sub-regulation (2), are to be –
(a) presented to the council –
(i) at the next ordinary meeting of the council following the end of the
month to which the statement relates; or
(ii) if the statement is not prepared in time to present it to the meeting
referred to in sub-paragraph (i), to the next ordinary meeting of the
council after that meeting; and
(b) recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which it is presented.

5.

Each financial year, a local government is to adopt a percentage or value,
calculated in accordance with AAS 5, to be used in statements of financial activity
for reporting material variances.

COMMENT
The new Regulations are explained as follows:
(A)

Part 1 of Regulation 34, i.e. “A local government is to prepare each month a statement
of financial activity reporting on the sources and applications of funds ……………”,
translates into the following report format, i.e.
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City of Armadale
Statement of Financial Activity
For the period 1 July 2005 to 31 August 2005

Particulars

Opening Balance (Net Current Assets July 1 B/Fwd)
Plus Revenues (Sources)
Operating
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
total operating
Non operating
Proceeds from Disposal of Assets
New Loan Borrowings
Transfers from Reserve Accounts
total non operating
Total Revenue
Less Expenses (Applications)
Operating
General Purpose Funding
Governance
Law, Order and Public Safety
Health
Education and Welfare
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services
(Profit)/Loss on Asset Disposal written-back
Depreciation on Assets written-back
total operating
Non operating
Land and Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Plant and Machinery
Infrastructure - Roads
Infrastructure - Drainage

Notes /

31 August

31 August

2005-2006

Material

Tables

2005

2005

Revised

Variance

Actual

YTD Budget

Budget

Indicator

$

$

$
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City of Armadale
Statement of Financial Activity
For the period 1 July 2005 to 31 August 2005

Particulars

Notes /

31 August

31 August

2005-2006

Material

Tables

2005

2005

Revised

Variance

Actual

YTD Budget

Budget

Indicator

$

$

$

Infrastructure - Pathways
Infrastructure - Parks
Loan Repayments (principal only)
Transfers to Reserve Accounts
total non operating
Less Total Funds to be Spent
Less

Closing Balance for Period (Net Current Assets Year to Date)
Amount Required From Rates

•

The above format is essentially the Rate Setting Statement as used for Annual
Budget purposes and is a logical one page representation of the City’s Financial
position in that it brings together the year start position, the operating and capital
revenues, the operating and capital expenditures, the current net assets position as at
the date of the Report and the amount required from rates.

•

As per part 3 of the Regulation 34, the operating revenue and expenditure line items
can be presented according to:
→
programs as is shown in the above Statement, OR
→
nature and type classifications which are listed as follows, OR
Revenue
9 Rates
9 Grants and subsidies
9 Contributions, reimbursements and donations
9 Profit on asset disposals
9 Service charges
9 Fees and charges
9 Interest earnings
9 Other revenue/income
Expenditure
9 Employee costs
9 Materials and contracts
9 Utilities (gas, electricity, water etc.)
9 Depreciation on non-current assets
9 Loss on asset disposal
9 Interest expenses
9 Insurance expenses
9 Other expenditure
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OR business units of the local government which in the City’s case may
be as follows:
CEO’s Office & Corporate Services Directorate
9 Members Administration
9 CEO’s Office
9 Human Resources
9 Governance & Administration
9 Information Technology
9 Financial Services
9 Statutory Revenues and Expenses
Community Services Directorate
9 Ranger Services
9 Recreation Services
9 Events
9 Aquatic Centre
9 Library Services
9 Heritage Services
9 Community Development & Administration
Development Services Directorate
9 Town Planning
9 Building Control
9 Private Pool Inspections
9 Health Services
9 Environmental Services
Technical Services Directorate
9 Civil Works
9 Parks & Reserves
9 Property Management
9 Waste Services
9 Support Services
9 Private Works
9 Client Services

It is recommended that the City start with the program option and over the next 2-3
months move to the business unit option format. The business unit option is not
presently available however when it does become available it is the preferred option
as it provides a much clearer and more legible picture of the City’s financial
position.
Part 2 of Regulation 34 refers to supplementary information to accompany the
Statement of Financial Activity.
This supplementary information is partly
discretionary and partly non-discretionary and each is explained as follows:
•

Non-discretionary information to be Reported:
→ firstly, an explanation of each of the ‘material variances’ as reported in the
Statement of Financial Activity. This is a logical requirement given the
variance reporting contained in the Statement. The difference between
“material” and “non-material” Where there is a material variance
requiring explanation/comment in the Statement the word “Review” will
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appear in the column headed “Material Variance Indicator”, alerting the
reader to the relevant note.
secondly, an explanation of the net current assets less committed and
restricted assets (as shown in the example below). together with a listing
of what makes-up each of the line item totals, e.g.
9 Cash Unrestricted will include such things as petty cash,
investments and cash at bank,
9 Cash Restricted will include the Reserve account balances, the
sundry deposit and bond account balances, unspent loans and
unspent grants for specific purposes,
9 Receivables (Debtors) listed by debtor groups,
9 etc.
Statement of Net Current Assets
For the Period 1 July 2005 to 31 August 2005

Particulars

As At
31 Aug 05
$

Brought
Forward
1.7.05
$

Compostion of Net Current Asset Position
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash - Unrestricted
Cash - Restricted
Receivables (Debtors) & Accruals
Inventories

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables (Creditors) & Accruals
Provisions
NET CURRENT ASSET POSITION

•

Discretionary Information to be Reported:
→
Examples may include,
9
a listing of the capital expenditures and revenues,
9
a listing of the City’s cash investments,
9
rates collection data,
9
details of budget amendments and variations,
9
recommended debtor write-offs,
9
ratio analysis and trends,
9
organizational ‘health-check’, etc.

It is proposed that this supplementary information be progressively introduced into the
monthly report over the next 4-5 months thereby enabling Council to determine what
data is deemed of interest and appropriate for inclusion on an on-going basis. It is not
intended that the supplementary information ever be ‘set in concrete’ but rather that
parts of the Report change from time to time depending on the circumstances at the
time, i.e. if Council and/or Management believe there is value in adding certain
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information into the Report then the reporting process ought to be flexible enough to
cater for that requirement.
(C)

Part 4 of Regulation 34 refers to when the Financial Reporting is to be presented to
Council, i.e. either the first Council meeting following the month end to which the
Financial Reports refer OR the next council meeting.
In the City’s case, the Reports will have to be presented to the second council meeting
of the month which generally occurs on the third Monday (the reason for this is that
the first council meeting occurs on the first Monday of the month which leaves no
time to prepare the Report for the prior month end). An issue that arises is that for
probably 6 out of the 12 months it will not be possible to complete the Financial
Reports in time for the City Strategy Committee Meeting Agenda. Accordingly and
so as to have a consistent approach to the matter, it is recommended that the Report
be presented direct to the second council meeting of each month via the CEO’s Report
and that part of the Report Recommendation always be to refer the Financial Report
as presented, to the next City Strategy Committee meeting for review and analysis.
Whilst the obvious downside to this approach is the one month delay in the review
process, it does provide greater time and opportunity for Councillors and Management
to review the Report. Of course if there were ‘pressing’ matters requiring more
urgent attention, then such matters would be the subject of separate report and
recommendation at an earlier time.
Another option in this regard is the
possibility/practicality of swapping the City Strategy Committee meeting date with
that of the Technical or Community Services Committees, which currently occur in
the fourth week of the month.

(D)

Part 5 of Regulation 34 refers to the requirement each year for Council to adopt a
percentage or value by which ‘material variances’ will be identified for
review/comment purposes.
Setting the percentage or value too low or too high will obviously result in
meaningless outcomes and hence the need for the percentage or value determined to
be relevant to the area of review. Whilst the Regulations require Council to adopt an
indicator of material variance, nothing prevents Council from subsequently changing
that indicator based on experience. Given (i) that the variance analysis occurs on a
period to date basis rather than an annual basis and (ii) our practical experience in
capturing and recording budget to actual data on a monthly basis is limited, it’s likely
that subsequent changes to the adopted percentage or value will be necessary.
In determining a material percentage or value, reference is to be made to “Australian
Accounting Standard 5 – Materiality” (AAS 5) which makes the following
commentary on materiality, i.e.
“Information is material if its omission, misstatement or non-disclosure has the
potential to adversely affect:
(a) decisions about the allocation of scarce resources made by users of the
financial report; or
(b) the discharge of accountability by the management or governing body of the
entity.”
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“Quantitative thresholds used as guidance for determining the materiality of an
amount of an item must, of necessity, be drawn at arbitrary levels.
Materiality is a matter of professional judgment influenced by characteristics of the
entity and the perceptions as to who are, or are likely to be, the users of the financial
reports, and their information needs”.
The general “rule of thumb” approach to determining what’s material, is that a 10% variance
is material, 5% is not material and anything between 5% and 10% is in the “grey area”.
On the basis of the above commentary on ‘materiality’, and having regard for officer
experience/knowledge, it is recommended that Council pursuant to Clause 34(5) of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations, initially adopt the following material
variance methodology for use in the Statement of Financial Activity, i.e.
Revenues – ‘material variances’ will be identified, where for the period being
reported, the actual is less than budget by an amount greater than $50,000 – in
these instances explanatory comment will be provided.
Expenditures – ‘material variances’ will be identified, where for the period being
reported, the actual is greater than budget by an amount greater than $100,000 –
in these instances explanatory comment to be provided.
Concluding Comments
Other matters for Council to note in terms of the form in which the new Statements of
Financial Activity will be presented are as follows:
•
It is proposed that the Statements and the Accompanying Financial
Information be presented in the form of a separate booklet and that the order of
the information be relatively fixed for ease of on-going monthly reference
purposes with executive summary type information at the front and the
detailed supporting information at the back of the document,
•
It is proposed that the document be inclusive of other financial type reports
thereby making it a ‘one-stop’ report on all key financial matters, e.g. the List
of Accounts Paid, Quarterly Budget Reviews, etc.
•
It is proposed that the document:
→ be a ‘living’ document in that the reported information over time
continues to be refined and developed thereby remaining relevant and
meaningful,
→ be compiled, written and presented in a form which is interesting,
meaningful and doesn’t require accounting/financial skills to interpret
the information presented.
Our goal is to produce a Monthly Financial Report that provides a meaningful and
reliable ‘barometer’ of the City’s financial performance in a manner which is readily
understood by Councillors, officers and public alike.
Presented at Attachment A-2 is the Financial Report for the period 1st July 2005 to 31st
August 2005.
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It should be noted that a number of line items clearly show “whole of year” expenditure
rather than “Year to Date”. This is an anomaly of the reporting system and will be reported
on to Committee.
Council Resolution 383/9/05 of 19 September 2005
That Council:
1.

Pursuant to clause 34(5) of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations, adopt the following indicators of
material variance for use in Statements of Financial Activity for the
2005-06 financial year, i.e.
• Revenues – ‘material variances’ will be identified, where for
the period being reported, the actual is less than budget by an
amount greater than $50,000 – in these instances explanatory
comment to be provided.
• Expenditures – ‘material variances’ will be identified, where
for the period being reported, the actual is greater than budget
by an amount greater than $100,000 – in these instances
explanatory comment to be provided.

2.

Approve the following practice for presenting future Monthly
Financial Reports to Council, i.e.
a. Monthly Financial Reports be presented to the second Council
meeting of each month via the CEO’s Report and that part of
the Report Recommendation be to refer the Monthly Financial
Report as presented, to the next City Strategy Committee for
review and analysis.

3.

Receive the Financial Report for the period ended 31st August 2005
as presented at Attachment A-1 to this Report and refer this
Financial Report to the October 2005 City Strategy Committee
Meeting for review.
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Attachment 4: Summary of submissions for those reserves advertised in Stage 6 of the Public Open Space Strategy.
POS
Map
Ref
1

Reserve

Size
(m2)

Location

31693*

1,628

28
Lefroy
Road
Mt Nasura

2

29937*

923

15 Wandoo
Street
Mt Nasura

Zoned
under
TPS 4
Local
P&R

Vesting

Local
P&R

Unvested

Unvested

Assessment
against
POS
Criteria
Uneconomic
size to retain
Good
surveillance
and access
Creates buffer
to Brookton
Hwy
Secondary
landscape
quality
-

6

28364

1,636

15
Millen
Street
Mt Nasura

Local
P&R

Vested in
CoA

-

Other notes
Large remnant trees
that buffer Brookton
Hwy are within the
road reserve, and
would not be affected
by the disposal and
development of this
reserve.

Uneconomic
size
to
maintain
Poor
surveillance
and access
Appears to be
a
vacant
residential lot
Secondary
landscape
quality
Within 200m
of
neighbourhoo
d POS
Uneconomic
size
to
maintain
Moderate
surveillance
and access
2
road
frontage
Within 50 m
of other local
POS

Proposal
advertised
to public
Cancel,
Rezone &
Dispose

Cancel,
Rezone &
Dispose

No opportunities to
rehabilitate a natural
stream that runs
through land parcel
because it is deeply
piped.

Cancel,
Rezone &
Dispose

Summary of Submissions. The number in brackets illustrates
the number of submissions that raised the issue.
Oppose Proposal – 2 submission
•
Environmental values – valuable fauna link (1). Birds
utilise trees for nesting, and reptiles utilise the tree for
habitat (2). Wandoo trees occurring on property are
locally significant (2) .
•
Heritage values – large and old trees.
•
Only area available for children to play without
crossing a major road. Closest alternative is Millen St.
•
Large trees on the reserve have large roots beneath
adjacent property.
•
Size of land parcel would open opportunities for a
triplex development that would increase traffic.
Oppose Proposal – 8 submissions
•
Environmental values - tree utilised by native birds for
nesting (5).
•
Tree is of value as it is very old (1).
•
Tree of landscape values (2) and heritage values as it is
a local landmark (3).
•
Similar proposal was opposed in the past (1).
•
Wandoo tree on reserve is of historical value (1).
•
One Wandoo tree is on the City’s register of significant
trees (1).
•
City of Armadale should accept vesting of this reserve
(1).
•
The immediate area lacks Public Open Space (2) and is
only accessible by crossing busy streets (1).
•
Children use area for recreating (1).
•
Reserve promotes a sense of low-density housing (1).
Oppose Proposal – 8 submissions
•
Utilised by children to access bus stop (1).
•
Drain underneath block (1).
•
Utilised by residents when walking (1).
•
Land valuable for urban stormwater quality
management (6).
•
Utilised by children for riding bikes etc. (6).
•
Used as access to Brookton Hwy (6).

POS
Map
Ref
10

13

Reserve

Size
(m2)

Location

30253*

3,400

End of Hicks
Rd
Kelmscott

26826

2,089

15 Gemsarna
Cres
Kelmscott

Zoned
under
TPS 4
Local
P&R

Local
P&R

Vesting
Unvested

Vested in
CoA

Assessment
against
POS
Criteria
Secondary
scenic quality
Poor
surveillance
and access
2
separate
land parcels
Drainage
reserve
(containing
watercourse)
runs through
one parcel
-

Primary
landscape
quality
Uneconomic
size
to
maintain
Surrounded
by
single
residential
Poor access
and
surveillance

Other notes
Land parcel at the
end of Hicks Rd has
watercourse running
through. Unlikely to
be
suitable
for
development
and
forms a corridor of
POS. Land parcel
opposite Kevin Rd is
like a house block
(area of 2,700 m2).
Overgrown
with
grasses.
Appears
unused.

Proposal
advertised
to public
Cancel,
Rezone &
Dispose
portion of
reserve
opposite
Kelvin
Road.

Cancel,
Rezone &
Dispose.

Summary of Submissions. The number in brackets illustrates
the number of submissions that raised the issue.
2 submissions support proposal. 1 suggests the use of funds.
12 submissions oppose proposal
•
Portion of Reserve that is a footpath is readily used by
residents to access shops and a bus stop along Brookton
Hwy (12).
•
Alternative route to the highway involves walking
along steep sloping streets (2).
•
Difficult to push pram along steep sloping streets (1).
•
Alternate route involves walking through the portion of
Reserve 30253 at the end of Hicks Rd that has poor
surveillance (1).
•
Gum trees on reserve provide habitat for birds (1).
•
Popular route for locals who walk recreationally (8).
Oppose Proposal – 7 submissions
•
Provides safe walking access for local residents to the shops
on Brookton Hwy (4), a bus stop (3) and a telephone box
(2).
•
Alternative routes do not have footpaths (2).
•
Used by local residents to exercise their dogs (2).
•
Utilised for recreation (including use by local children) (4).
Previously had play equipment on reserve (1).
•
The nature and slope of the land’s surface may result in
flooding of the lower portion of the reserve. The drainage
structure of the land would require review before being
suitable for development (2).
•
Environmentally significant for bird life (1).
•
Requires minimal maintenance (1).
•
Value adding to the properties of surrounding residents (1).
•
Utilised to access a private property (2).
•
Reserve is readily accessible for residents of Gemsarna Cres
(1).
•
Brookton Highway residents utilise Reserve to access
Gemsarna Cres and Reserve on the corner of Bernard Street.
•
Creates a low density housing atmosphere.
•
Reserve contains a seasonally flowing drain (2).

POS
Map
Ref
17

40

Reserve

Size
(m2)

Location

32225

5,438

27
Broomfield
Drive
Kelmscott

28218*

1,770

3244 Albany
Hwy
Mt
Nasura

Zoned
under
TPS 4
Local
P&R

Local
P&R

Vesting
Vested in
CoA

Unvested

Assessment
against
POS
Criteria
Secondary
landscape
quality
Dense
overstorey
and
understorey
Poor
surveillance
Moderate
access
Secondary
landscape
quality
Poor access
and
surveillance
Uneconomic
size
to
maintain
Long narrow
lot
No
other
practical use

Other notes
Very rocky area.
Unable to access
between Cope St to
Bromfield
Drive
across reserve as
western slope is very
steep and rocky.

Proposal
advertised
to public
Cancel,
Rezone &
Dispose.

Summary of Submissions. The number in brackets illustrates
the number of submissions that raised the issue.
Oppose Proposal – 1 submission
•
Children use reserve to access Cope Place on the way
to school (1).
•
Utilised by native fauna including Kangaroo’s,
echidna’s and bandicoots (1).
•
Only a portion of the Reserve adjacent to Cope Place is
steep.
•
The Bromfield Drive portion of the reserve is gently
sloped (1).

•
Cancel,
Rezone &
Dispose.

Utilised by local residents for walking (1).

1 submission opposed to proposal
•
On Behalf of Wirra Willa Gardens objects to proposal.
•
As a part of Draft TPS 4, Council has supported the
development of low key tourist uses on the Wirra Willa
site.
•
The land parcel has landscape values as it is exposed to
Albany Hwy.
•
POS provides a buffer to the Wirra Willa Gardens.
•
Opportunity to consolidate the POS Site with Wirra
Willa Gardens, or utilise the POS as a link between the
Wirra Willa Gardens and the Armadale Train Station.
•
The land has limited suitability for sale and residential
development as it is close to the intersection of Albany
Hwy, South Western Highway and Armadale Road.
•
Important vegetation link with Wirra Willa gardens that
would be lost if developed for residential purposes.
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Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

Local Government Act 1995
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996

Statement by Chief Executive Officer
The attached financial report of the City of Armadale, being the annual financial report and supporting
notes and other information for the financial year ended 30 June 2005, are in my opinion properly drawn
up to present fairly the financial position of the City of Armadale at 30 June 2005 and the results of the
operations for the financial year then ended in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards
and comply with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 and regulations under that Act.

Signed on the fourth day of October 2005.

R S Tame
Chief Executive Officer

City of Armadale
Operating Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2005

Note

2005

2005

2004

Budget
$
Revenues from Ordinary Activities

$

$

2

General Purpose Funding

20,812,105

20,925,622

20,366,594

1,400

20,333

42,668

Law, Order and Public Safety

439,969

492,361

488,134

Health

102,462

91,800

89,431

Governance

Education and Welfare

204,964

198,921

404,531

Community Amenities

4,218,965

4,177,678

5,437,004

961,571

796,994

882,767

Recreation and Culture
Transport

5,122,093

4,337,812

4,166,885

Economic Services

379,230

279,356

322,631

Other Property and Services

386,740

129,196

235,440

32,629,499

31,450,073

32,436,085

General Purpose Funding

679,869

239,266

157,157

Governance

655,433

1,564,255

1,445,813

1,076,793

1,362,898

1,117,846

823,200

663,332

608,235

Education and Welfare

1,395,799

1,132,541

1,053,488

Community Amenities

5,336,838

6,223,266

6,765,192

Recreation and Culture

Expenses from Ordinary Activities
Ex Borrowing Cost

2

Law, Order and Public Safety
Health

11,105,177

11,186,140

10,243,396

Transport

6,704,094

8,237,341

7,672,820

Economic Services

1,021,363

796,759

709,789

Other Property and Services

172,138

140,538

951,078

28,970,704

31,546,336

30,724,814

General Purpose Funding

0

1,000

0

Governance

0

50,000

4,486

Borrowing Costs Expense

2

Community Amenities

6,166

6,600

6,929

Recreation and Culture

16,209

64,500

23,635

Other Property and Services

48,925

0

0

71,300

122,100

35,050

3,587,495

(218,363)

1,676,221

Net Profit or Loss / Result

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

City of Armadale
Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended 30 June 2005

As at 30 June 2005

Note

2005

2004

$

$

Current Assets
Cash Assets

3

14,420,034

9,057,385

Receivables

4

2,563,727

1,963,356

Inventories

5

Total Current Assets

88,994

118,824

17,072,755

11,139,565

Non-Current Assets
Receivables

4

577,327

609,545

Property, Plant and Equipment

6

25,401,706

26,839,896

Infrastructure

7

167,901,845

167,746,819

Total Non-Current Assets

193,880,878

195,196,260

Total Assets

210,953,633

206,335,825

4,296,568

1,714,961

Current Liabilities
Payables

8

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

9

419,172

194,050

Provisions

10

1,815,019

2,263,996

6,530,759

4,173,007

1,209,666

1,043,838

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Interest-Bearing Liabilities

9

Provisions

10

619,481

288,686

Total Non-Current Liabilities

1,829,147

1,332,524

Total Liabilities

8,359,906

5,505,531

202,593,727

200,830,294

190,099,036

187,344,302

4,042,943

3,210,182

Net Assets
Equity
Retained Surplus

Total Equity

Reserves - Cash Backed

11

Reserves - Asset Revaluation

12

8,451,748

10,275,810

202,593,727

200,830,294

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

City of Armadale
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2005

For the year ended 30 June 2005
Note

2005

2004

$

$

Retained Surplus
Balance as at 1 July 2004

186,344,302

185,775,038

Net Result

3,587,495

1,676,221

Transfer from / (to) Reserves

(832,761)

(106,957)

190,099,036

187,344,302

3,210,182

3,103,225

832,761

106,957

4,042,943

3,210,182

10,275,810

10,275,810

0

0

(1,824,062)

0

8,451,748

10,275,810

202,593,727

200,830,294

Balance as at 30 June 2005

Reserves - Cash Backed
Balance as at 1 July 2004
Transfer (to) / from Retained Surplus
Balance as at 30 June 2005

11

Reserves - Asset Revaluations
Balance as at 1 July 2004

Revaluation Increment
Revaluation Decrement
Balance as at 30 June 2005
Total Equity

12

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

City of Armadale
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2005
Note

2005

2005

2004

Budget
$

$

$

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts
Rates
Grants and Subsidies - Operating
Contributions, Reimbursements and Donations
Service Charges
Fees and Charges

18,199,840

17,767,405

16,904,659

2,330,377

2,172,830

2,831,673

590,848

2,971,189

1,850,829

0

0

0

4,810,520

5,908,885

6,914,825

Interest Earnings

906,674

599,838

758,808

Goods and Services Tax (on revenue)

761,789

495,672

781,587

Goods and Services Tax (refunded)

853,973

500,000

1,022,232

Other

134,968

604,967

1,296,107

28,588,989

31,020,786

32,360,720

(10,790,993)

(10,722,988)

(11,148,687)

(6,112,493)

(10,371,059)

(8,306,948)

Utility Charges

(387,110)

(1,010,577)

(1,083,050)

Insurance

(483,085)

(515,996)

(852,285)

(71,300)

(112,100)

(35,050)

(1,729,914)

0

(1,777,259)

(454,646)

(2,692,864)

(1,764,656)

(20,029,541)

(25,425,584)

(24,967,935)

8,559,448

5,595,202

7,392,785

0

0

0

Payment for Property, Plant and Equipment

(2,540,640)

(3,182,702)

(2,957,185)

Payment for Infrastructure

(6,441,147)

(11,587,864)

(6,708,615)

4,914,945

2,223,915

2,491,142

479,093

537,400

763,015

(3,587,749)

(12,009,251)

(6,411,643)

Payments
Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts

Interest
Goods and Services Tax
Other

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

13

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payment for Development of Land

Grants and Subsidies - Non Operating
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Advances to Community Groups

0

0

0

(194,050)

(243,700)

(96,403)

Repayment of Finance Leases

0

0

0

Proceeds from Self Supporting Loans

0

2,900

0

Proceeds from Advances

0

0

0

585,000

1,070,000

800,000

390,950

829,200

703,597

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held

5,362,649

(5,584,849)

1,684,739

Cash at Beginning of Year

9,057,385

9,212,149

7,372,646

14,420,034

3,627,300

9,057,385

Repayment of Debentures

Proceeds from New Debentures
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Cash at End of Year

13

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

City of Armadale
Notes to and, forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005
1.
Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the
preparation of this financial report are:

•

a.
Basis of Accounting
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been
prepared in accordance with the applicable Australian Accounting
Standards, other mandatory professional reporting requirements
and the Local Government Act 1995 and accompanying regulations.
The report has also been prepared on the accrual basis under the
convention of historical cost accounting.

•

b.
The Local Government Reporting Entity
All funds through which the Council controls resources to carry on its
functions have been included in the financial statements forming part
of this financial report.

g.
Investments
All investments are valued at cost. Interest on those investments is
recognised when accrued.

In the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all
transactions and balances between those funds (for example, loans and
transfers between funds) have been eliminated.
All monies held in the Trust Fund are excluded from the financial
statements, but a separate statement of those monies appears at Note
17 to these financial statements.
c.
Goods and Services Tax
In accordance with recommended practice, revenues, expenses and
assets capitalised are stated net of any GST recoverable. Receivables
and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are stated inclusive
of applicable GST.

d.
Fixed Assets
Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure assets are brought to
account at cost or at independent or management valuation less, where
applicable, any accumulated depreciation or amortisation.
The value of all infrastructure assets (other than land under roads)
has been recorded in the Statement of Financial Position. Land under
roads is excluded from infrastructure in accordance with accounting
standards and legislative requirements.
Council has elected to measure property, plant and equipment and
all infrastructure assets at cost basis with regular revaluations being
conducted.
e.
Land Held for Resale
Land purchased for development and / or resale is valued at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of acquisition,
development and interest incurred on the financing of that land
during its development. Interest and holding charges incurred after
development is complete are recognised as expenses.

f.
Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically
depreciated over their useful lives in a manner that reflects the
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in those
assets.
Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis, using rates that are
reviewed each reporting period. Major depreciation periods are:
•
•
•
•

Buildings
Electronic Equipment
Furniture and Equipment
Plant and Machinery

50 years
5 years
15 years
3 to 20 years

•
•
•

Sealed Roads and Streets
- Clearing and Earthworks
- Construction and Road Base
- Original Surface and Major Resurfacing
Gravel Roads
- Clearing and Earthworks
- Construction and Road Base
- Gravel Sheet
Drainage
Pathways
Parks and Reserves

Not depreciated
50 years
50 years
Not depreciated
50 years
12 years
50 years
20 years
20 years

h.
Joint Venture
The City’s interest in any joint ventures has been recognised in the
financial statements by including its share of any assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of the joint venture within the Statement of
Financial Position and Operating Statement and set out in Note 16.
i.
Leases
Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership,
are transferred to the City, are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability equal to the
present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed
residual value. Leased assets are amortised over their estimated useful
lives. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease
liability and the lease interest expense for the period.
Lease payments under operating leases, where substantially all the risks
and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.
j.
Employee Benefits
The provisions for employee benefits relates to amounts expected to
be paid for long service leave, annual leave, wages and salaries and are
calculated as follows:
Wages, Salaries, and Annual Leave
The provision for employees’ benefits to wages, salaries and annual
leave represents the amount that the City has a present obligation
to pay resulting from employees’ services provided to balance date.
The provision has been calculated at nominal amounts based on
remuneration rates the Council expects to pay and includes related
on-costs.
Long Service Leave
he provision for employees’ benefits for long service leave represents
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by
the employer resulting from the employees’ service to balance date.
k.
Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions
Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as
revenues when the local government obtains control over the assets
comprising the contributions. Control over assets acquired from rates
is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where earlier,
upon receipt of the rates.
Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting
period were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a
particular manner or used over a particular period as disclosed in Note
2. That note also discloses the amount of contributions recognised as
revenues in a previous reporting period that were obtained in respect
of the local government’s operations for the current reporting period.

City of Armadale
Notes to and, forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

l.
Superannuation
The City of Armadale contributes the Local Government Superannuation
Scheme. This fund is a defined contribution scheme.
m.
Interest Rate Risk
The City’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial
instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest
rates, is considered negligible for all financial instruments other than
borrowings. Information on interest rate risk, as it applies to borrowings,
is disclosed in Note 21.
n.
Credit Risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any
collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised financial
assets, is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debts,
as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.
The City does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single
debtor or group of debtors under financial instruments entered into
by the City.
o.
Net Fair Values
The net fair value of assets and liabilities approximate their carrying
values. No financial assets and financial liabilities are readily traded on
organised markets in standardised form. Financial assets where the
carrying amount exceeds net fair values have not been written down
as council intends to hold these assets to maturity. The aggregate net
fair value and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
are disclosed in the balance sheet and in the notes to, and forming part
of, the accounts.
p.
Rounding Off Figures and Minor Differences
All figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the
dollar, are rounded to the nearest dollar. Due to the nature of rounding,
minor differences between totals may occur.
q.
Comparative Figures
Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to changes in presentation for the current financial year and may differ
from previous period reporting.

City of Armadale
Notes to and, forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

2005

2004

$

$

2.

Revenues and Expenses

a.

Net Profit or Loss / Result from Ordinary Activities was arrived at after:

i.

Charging as Expenses:
Significant Expense

Nil

Nil

Amortisation

Nil

Nil

12,000

9,976

1,470

868

Auditor’s Remuneration
Audit
Other Services
Bad and Doubtful Debts
Rates Written Off

20,738

30,626

Sundry Debtors Written Off

25,677

293,129

Provision for Doubtful Debts

122,378

122,378

437,067

439,049

1,148,733

1,053,489

Depreciation
Land and Buildings
Plant and Machinery
Furniture and Equipment
Roads
Drainage

ii.

121,907

32,647

2,240,420

2,242,940

517,134

516,912

Pathways

266,893

262,962

Reserves

3,261,674

3,264,482

7,993,828

7,812,481

Crediting as Revenues:
2005

2005

2004

Budget
$

$

$

Interest Earnings
Investments - Reserve Funds

159,038

145,120

163,718

Investments - Other Funds

592,625

250,000

400,414

154,971

167,970

190,750

39

100

3,926

906,673

563,190

758,808

Other Interest Revenue
Other Interest Revenue - Loans

27

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

Note

2005

2004

$

$

2.

Revenues and Expenses (continued)

b.

Revenues and Expenses Classified According to Nature and Type
Revenues
Rates

23

17,703,117

16,663,294

Grants and Subsidies - Operating

29

2,330,377

2,831,673

Grants and Subsidies - Non Operating

29

4,914,945

2,491,142

590,848

1,850,829

Contributions, Reimbursements and Donations
Profit on Asset Disposals

19

173,175

331,815

Fees and Charges

28

5,875,396

6,283,048

Interest Earnings

2

906,673

758,808

Other Revenue

134,968

1,225,476

32,629,499

32,436,085

10,864,403

11,740,999

8,646,489

7,383,252

Utility Charges

387,110

1,083,050

Insurance

483,085

852,285

7,993,828

7,812,481

Expenses
Employee Costs
Materials and Contracts

Depreciation on Non-Current Assets

2

Loss on Asset Disposal

19

Other Expenditure
Interest

c.

2

141,143

58,262

454,646

1,794,485

28,970,704

30,724,814

71,300

35,050

29,042,004

30,759,864

Borrowing Costs Expense
Borrowing Costs Expense Comprises:
Finance Lease Charges
Debentures

21

0

0

71,300

35,050

71,300

35,050

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005
2.

Revenues and Expenses (continued)

d.
Statement of Objective
In order to discharge its responsibilities to the community, the city has developed a set of operational and financial objectives. The objectives
have been established both on an overall basis, reflected by the City’s Commitment and Vision statements, and for each of its broad activities
/ programmes.
Our Commitment
To create a caring and vibrant City, rich in history, heritage and lifestyle.
Our Vision
•
A major regional centre
•
A place with the advantages of city living and the natural beauty of the bushland setting
•
A city strong in opportunity – in comparison to any other city in Australia
•
A great place to raise small children
•
Clean, green and prosperous
Council operations, as disclosed in this report, encompass the following service oriented activities / programmes:
General Purpose Funding
This programme includes rates, statutory grants from the Western Australian Local Government Grants Commission and interest on
investments from Municipal and Reserve funds.
Governance
This programme includes the administration and operation of facilities and services to the elected members of Council. It also includes civic
receptions, citizenship ceremonies, research, development and preparation of policy documents, strategic planning, annual budgets, annual
financial reports, audit fees and the annual report.
Law, Order and Public Safety
This programme includes the administration and operation of volunteer fire services and the state emergency services, together with animal
control and community safety.
Health
This programme includes services such as immunisation, health inspections, pest control, noise control and health clinics.
Education and Welfare
This programme includes pre-schools, senior citizen centres, disability services and other community development activities such as seniors,
youth and indigenous services.
Community Amenities
This programme includes town planning and regional development services, protection of the environment, refuse collection and disposal,
provision of public toilets, bus shelters and street furniture.
Recreation and Culture
This is the provision of public buildings, libraries, aquatic centres, community events, cultural activities, museums, indoor and outdoor sporting
complexes, parks and gardens, and playgrounds.
Transport
This programme includes the maintenance and construction of roads, drains, pathways, crossovers and traffic calming devices, plus street
lighting and cleaning, road signs and parking areas.
Economic Services
This programme covers building control, private swimming pool inspections, tourism and economic development.
Other Property and Services
This programme includes public works overheads and the purchase and maintenance of engineering plant and equipment.

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

2.

Revenues and Expenses (continued)

e.

Conditions Over Contributions

2005

2004

$

$

Grants recognised as revenues in a previous reporting period that were not expended at the close of
the previous reporting period (i.e. opening balance)
Law, Order and Public Safety
Emergency Services

0

100,450

Education and Welfare
Aboriginal Leaders

0

4,129

Aboriginal Support

0

50,200

Armadale Senior Citizen Centre

0

190,000

Community Arts Network

0

7,075

Indigenous Youth Arts

21,990

0

Keystart Neighbourhood Improvement

32,667

35,419

Safer WA

0

9,704

Vacation Training

0

5,695

Volunteer Resource Centre

0

30,000

Biodiversity Project

0

5,739

Cities for Climate Protection

0

30,000

Envirofund

0

2,000

Fletcher Park

0

2,000

2,114

0

468,808

258,909

Grants Commission Road Fund

0

389,862

Local Government Road Fund

0

120,729

Main Roads Road Fund

0

1,062,799

Community Amenities

Waterwise
Transport
Federal Blackspot

Minor Acquisitions

0

1,974

Planning and Infrastructure

0

112,502

496,104

0

Roads to Recovery
Roadwise Safety Instructor

3,645

1,021

State Blackspot

61,322

28,000

Street Lighting

14,051

0

1,100,701

2,448,207

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

2.

Revenues and Expenses (continued)

e.

Conditions Over Contributions (continued)

2005

2004

$

$

New grants that were recognised as revenues during the reporting period and that had not yet been
fully expended in the manner specified
Law, Order and Public Safety
Emergency Services

7,197

0

Education and Welfare
Indigenous Youth Arts

0

21,990

Keystart Neighbourhood Improvement

0

32,667

0

2,114

66,000

468,808

1,000,000

0

0

496,104

Community Amenities
Waterwise
Transport
Grants Commission Road Fund
Local Government Road Fund
Roads to Recovery
Roadwise Safety Instructor
State Blackspot
Street Lighting

0

3,645

37,000

61,322

0

14,051

1,110,197

1,100,701

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

2.

Revenues and Expenses (continued)

e.

Conditions Over Contributions (continued)

2005

2004

$

$

Grants that have been recognised as revenues in a previous reporting period, and that were expended
in the current reporting period in the manner specified by the contributor
Law, Order and Public Safety
Emergency Services

0

100,450

Aboriginal Leaders

0

4,129

Aboriginal Support

0

50,200

Armadale Senior Citizen Centre

0

190,000

Education and Welfare

Community Arts Network

0

7,075

Indigenous Youth Arts

21,990

0

Keystart Neighbourhood Improvement

32,667

35,419

Safer WA

0

9,704

Vacation Training

0

5,695

Volunteer Resource Centre

0

30,000

Biodiversity Project

0

5,739

Cities for Climate Protection

0

30,000

Envirofund

0

2,000

Fletcher Park

0

2,000

2,114

0

0

258,909

Community Amenities

Waterwise
Transport
Federal Blackspot
Grants Commission Road Fund

468,808

389,862

Local Government Road Fund

0

120,729

Main Roads Road Fund

0

1,062,799

Minor Acquisitions

0

1,974

Planning and Infrastructure

0

112,502

496,104

0

Roads to Recovery
Roadwise Safety Instructor

3,645

1,021

State Blackspot

61,322

28,000

Street Lighting

14,051

0

1,100,701

2,448,207

1,110,197

1,100,701

Closing balances of unspent grants

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

3.

2005

2004

$

$

Cash Assets
Unrestricted

7,128,628

3,919,722

Restricted

7,291,406

5,137,663

14,420,034

9,057,385

The following restrictions have been imposed by regulations or other externally imposed requirements:
Waste Management Reserve

2,081,634

1,839,534

Plant and Machinery Reserve

1,130,475

872,470

233,051

233,052

60,085

51,936

0

0

99,841

0

0

0

89,807

92,040

8,000

8,000

292,850

92,850

Land Acquisition Reserve
Long Service Leave Reserve
Armadale-Kelmscott Seniors’ Reserve
Workers’ Compensation Reserve
Revolving Energy Reserve
Building Plant and Equipment Reserve
PABX Telephone System Upgrade Reserve
Mobile Garbage Bin Programme Reserve
Future Recreation Facilities Reserve
Restricted Cash - Sundry Deposits and Bonds
Restricted Cash - Employee Provisions
Unspent Grants
Unspent Loans

4.

47,200

20,300

1,377,306

539,569

760,960

0

1,110,197

1,100,701

0

287,211

7,291,406

5,137,663

Receivables
Current
Rates Outstanding

(44,665)

421,640

Sundry Debtors

2,301,727

735,747

Provision for Doubtful Debts

(122,378)

(122,378)

GST Receivable

0

0

Accruals and Prepayments

429,043

927,311

Loans - Clubs / Institutions

0

1,036

2,563,727

1,963,356

577,327

607,745

Non-Current
Rates Outstanding - Pensioners
Loans - Clubs / Institutions

5.

0

1,800

577,327

609,545

Inventories
Current
Fuel and Materials

88,994

118,824

88,994

118,824

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

6.

2005

2004

$

$

Property, Plant and Equipment
Land and Buildings - Cost
Management Valuation - 2005

0

24,569,225

20,429,796

0

0

(2,824,520)

20,429,796

21,744,705

Furniture and Equipment - Cost

2,098,176

2,095,276

Less Accumulated Depreciation

(2,027,414)

(1,905,507)

70,762

189,769

Plant and Machinery - Cost

10,616,531

10,097,277

Less Accumulated Depreciation

(5,715,383)

(5,191,855)

4,901,148

4,905,422

25,401,706

26,839,896

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment between the
beginning and the end of the current financial year is shown below:

Land and Buildings
Beginning Balance
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation Movements
Depreciation Written Back
Depreciation Expense
Carrying Amount

21,744,705

21,717,736

1,067,953

466,016

(143,951)

0

(1,824,062)

0

22,218

0

(437,067)

(439,047)

20,429,796

21,744,705

189,769

203,359

2,900

19,056

Furniture and Equipment
Beginning Balance
Additions
Disposals

0

0

Revaluation Movements

0

0

Depreciation Written Back

0

0

Depreciation Expense
Carrying Amount

(121,907)

(32,646)

70,762

189,769

Plant and Machinery
Beginning Balance

4,905,422

3,976,260

Additions

1,469,787

2,472,113

Disposals

(950,533)

(1,478,418)

Revaluation Movements

0

0

625,205

988,956

Depreciation Expense

(1,148,733)

(1,053,489)

Carrying Amount

4,901,148

4,905,422

25,401,706

26,839,896

Depreciation Written Back

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

7.

2005

2004

$

$

Infrastructure
Roads - Cost

117,350,559

112,149,031

Less Accumulated Depreciation

(15,720,965)

(13,480,545)

101,629,594

98,668,486

26,354,248

25,857,178

Drainage - Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Pathways - Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Parks and Reserves - Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Infrastructure

(4,007,710)

(3,490,576)

22,346,538

22,366,602

5,679,696

5,338,670

(1,627,449)

(1,360,556)

4,052,247

3,978,114

65,653,554

65,252,030

(25,780,088)

(22,518,413)

39,873,466

42,733,617

167,901,845

167,746,819

Movements in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts of each class of infrastructure between the beginning and the end
of the current financial year is shown below:

Roads
Beginning Balance

98,668,486

95,256,369

Additions

5,201,528

5,655,057

Disposals

0

0

Revaluation Movements

0

0

Depreciation Written Back

0

0

(2,240,420)

(2,242,940)

101,629,594

98,668,486

22,366,602

22,565,953

Additions

497,070

317,561

Disposals

0

0

Revaluation Movements

0

0

Depreciation Expense
Carrying Amount
Drainage
Beginning Balance

Depreciation Written Back
Depreciation Expense
Carrying Amount

0

0

(517,134)

(516,912)

22,346,538

22,366,602

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
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7.

2005

2004

$

$

Infrastructure (continued)
Movements in Carrying Amounts
(continued)
Pathways
Beginning Balance
Additions

3,978,114

3,613,206

341,026

627,870

Disposals

0

0

Revaluation Movements

0

0

Depreciation Written Back

0

0

Depreciation Expense
Carrying Amount

(266,893)

(262,962)

4,052,247

3,978,114

42,733,617

45,889,972

401,523

108,127

Parks and Reserves
Beginning Balance
Additions
Disposals

0

0

Revaluation Movements

0

0

Depreciation Written Back

0

0

Depreciation Expense
Carrying Amount
Total Infrastructure
8.

(3,261,674)

(3,264,482)

39,873,466

42,733,617

167,901,845

167,746,819

2,026,516

404,084

382,352

659,590

Payables
Current
Sundry and Rates Creditors
Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenue

9.

38,914

64,297

Sundry Deposits and Bonds

1,377,306

539,569

Accrued Salaries and Wages

471,480

47,421

4,296,568

1,714,961

419,172

194,050

419,172

194,050

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Current
Secured by Floating Charge
Debentures

Non-Current
Secured by Floating Charge
Debentures

Additional details on borrowings are provided in Note 21.

1,209,666

1,043,838

1,209,666

1,043,838

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

2005

2005

2004

Budget
$
10.

$

$

Provisions
Current
Provision for Annual Leave

961,152

1,347,792

Provision for Sick Leave

100,000

161,442

Provision for Long Service Leave

753,867

754,762

1,815,019

2,263,996

Non-Current

11.

Provision for Annual Leave

197,067

0

Provision for Long Service Leave

422,414

288,686

619,481

288,686

Reserves - Cash Backed
Waste Management Reserve
Opening Balance
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

1,839,534

1,839,534

1,498,534

345,000

345,000

384,000

(102,900)

(35,500)

(43,000)

2,081,634

2,149,034

1,839,534

872,470

872,470

1,315,170

Plant and Machinery Reserve
Opening Balance
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve

1,148,700

970,000

1,118,270

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

(890,695)

(1,404,900)

(1,560,970)

1,130,475

437,570

872,470

233,051

233,051

201,687

0

0

31,364

Closing Balance
Land Acquisition Reserve
Opening Balance
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

0

0

0

233,051

233,051

233,051

51,936

51,936

44,218

8,149

0

7,718

Long Service Leave Reserve
Opening Balance
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

0

0

0

60,085

51,936

51,936

Opening Balance

0

0

16,575

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve

0

0

0

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

0

0

(16,575)

Closing Balance

0

0

0

0

0

0

99,841

68,300

0

0

0

0

99,841

68,300

0

Closing Balance
Armadale-Kelmscott Seniors’ Reserve

Workers’ Compensation Reserve
Opening Balance
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2005

2005

2005

2004

Budget
$

11.

$

$

Reserves - Cash Backed (continued)
Revolving Energy Reserve
Opening Balance

0

0

0

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve

0

0

0

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve

0

0

0

Closing Balance

0

0

0

Opening Balance

92,040

92,040

27,040

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve

24,167

24,167

65,000

Building Plant and Equipment Reserve

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

(26,400)

0

0

89,807

116,207

92,040

8,000

8,000

0

0

0

8,000

PABX Telephone System Upgrade Reserve
Opening Balance
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

0

0

0

8,000

8,000

8,000

Mobile Garbage Bin Programme Reserve
Opening Balance
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance

92,850

92,850

0

200,000

200,000

92,850

0

0

0

292,850

292,850

92,850

Future Recreation Facilities Reserve
Opening Balance

20,300

20,300

0

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve

26,900

26,900

20,300

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve
Closing Balance
Total Reserves - Cash Backed

0

0

47,200

47,200

20,300

4,042,943

3,404,148

3,210,181

All of the cash backed reserve accounts are supported by money held in financial institutions and
match the amounts shown as restricted cash in Note 3 to this financial report.
In accordance with Council resolutions in relation to each reserve account, the purpose for which
the funds are set aside are as follows:
Waste Management Reserve - To be used to assist in management and future provisioning of
Council’s Waste Management Site.
Plant and Machinery Reserve - To be used to assist in the purchase and replacement of plant and
machinery.
Long Service Leave Reserve - To be used to cover Council’s portable Long Service Leave liability.

City of Armadale
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11.

2005

2004

$

$

Reserves - Cash Backed (continued)
Armadale-Kelmscott Seniors’ Reserve - To be used to assist in improvement and refurbishment of the
Armadale-Kelmscott Seniors’ Centre.
Workers’ Compensation Reserve - To be used to assist in covering Council’s workers’ compensation
liability.
Revolving Energy Reserve - To be used to assist in establishing energy efficient management techniques.
Building Plant and Equipment Reserve - To be used to assist in the replacement of equipment associated
with Council buildings.
PABX Telephone System Upgrade - To be used to assist in the upgrade and replacement of Council’s current
PABX telephone system.
Mobile Garbage Bin Programme Reserve - To be used to assist in the purchase and replacement of the City’s
Mobile Garbage Bins.
Future Recreation Facilities Reserve - To be used to assist in the construction of future recreation facilities.
Various movements within each of the reserves is expected in the future as further transfers to, and from,
occur.

12.

Reserves - Asset Revaluation
Asset revaluation reserves have arisen on revaluation of the following classes of noncurrent asset:
Land and Buildings
Opening Balance

10,275,810

10,275,810

0

0

Revaluation Decrement

(1,824,062)

0

Total Asset Revaluation Reserves

8,451,748

10,275,810

Revaluation Increment

City of Armadale
Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial Report
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13.

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

a.

Reconciliation of Cash

2005

2004

$

$

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and investments,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period is reconciled to the related
items in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash Assets

b.

14,420,035

9,057,385

Net Result

3,587,495

1,676,221

Depreciation

7,993,828

7,812,481

(32,032)

(273,553)

(Increase) / Decrease in Receivables

(568,153)

970,333

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

29,830

(21,383)

2,581,607

(857,128)

Increase / (Decrease) in Payables
Increase / (Decrease) in Employee Provisions

(118,182)

576,955

Grants and Contributions for Asset Development

(4,914,945)

(2,491,142)

Net Cash from Operating Activities

8,559,448

7,392,784

100,000

100,000

0

0

6,000

6,000

0

0

106,000

106,000

Credit Standby Arrangements
Bank Overdraft Limit
Bank Overdraft at Balance Date
Credit Card Limit
Credit Card at Balance Date
Total Amount of Credit Unused

d.

9,057,385

Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities to Net Result

(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Asset

c.

14,420,035

Loan Facilities
Loan Facilities - Current
Loan Facilities - Non-Current
Total Facilities in Use at Balance Date
Unused Loan Facilities at Balance Date

419,172

194,050

1,209,666

1,043,838

1,628,838

1,237,888

0

287,211

City of Armadale
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14.

2005

2004

$

$

Nil

Nil

Finance Lease Commitments

Nil

Nil

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Nil

Nil

Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities

15.

16.

Capital and Leasing Commitments

Joint Venture
The City does not have any joint ventures with other organisations.

17.

Trust Funds
Funds held at the balance date over which the City has no control and that are included in the
financial statements are as follows:

Item

Amounts

Amounts

Balance

1 July

Received

Paid

30 June

$

$

$

$

Builders Registration Board Levy

0

48,540

(48,540)

0

Building Construction Training Fund

0

141,062

(141,062)

0

Rates in Suspense

16,035

1,976

(130)

17,881

SEMACC Lease Liability

10,525

0

0

10,525

Town Planning Bonds

25,041

4,000

(4,000)

25,041

Town Planning Section 28A Deposits

18.

Balance

26,321

0

0

26,321

77,922

195,578

(193,732)

79,768

Total Assets (Current and Non-Current) Classified by Function and Activity
General Purpose Funding

6,939,367

Governance

1,019,362

213,073

Law, Order and Public Safety

1,234,575

1,273,907

131,988

237,089

2,995,441

2,843,372

0

0

Community Amenities

5,159,124

4,465,869

Recreation and Culture

57,228,214

62,902,829

133,487,302

129,903,446

2,355,588

320,888

402,672

162,096

210,953,633

206,335,825

Health
Education and Welfare
Housing

Transport
Economic Services
Other Property and Services

4,013,256
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19.

Disposals of Assets - 2004-2005 Financial Year
The following assets were disposed of during the year:
Net Book Value

Item

Sale Price

Profit (Loss)

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

$

$

$

$

$

$

Land and Buildings
Law, Order and Public Safety
Bushfire Tender Garage

4,228

0

0

0

(4,228)

0

4,228

0

0

0

(4,228)

0

Lot 651 Westfield Road

0

0

0

120,000

0

120,000

Pries Park Football Shed

2,283

0

0

0

(2,283)

0

Recreation and Culture

Kelmscott Pool Kiosk

7,836

0

0

0

(7,836)

0

Kelmscott Pool Plant Room

10,571

0

0

0

(10,571)

0

Gwynne Park Kiosk

14,207

0

0

0

(14,207)

0

7,153

0

0

0

(7,153)

0

Kuhl House

22,875

0

0

0

(22,875)

0

Kuhl House Changerooms

29,175

0

0

0

(29,175)

0

335

0

0

0

(335)

0

94,435

0

0

120,000

(94,435)

120,000

13,881

0

0

0

(13,881)

0

9,189

0

0

0

(9,189)

0

23,070

0

0

0

(23,070)

0

121,733

0

0

120,000

(121,733)

120,000

Gwynne Park Upgrade

Waste Treatment Plant

Transport
Bores and Pumps
Depot Treatment Plant

Total Land - Buildings
Plant and Machinery
Governance
P727 - Wagon

13,816

15,603

15,932

14,000

2,116

(1,603)

P736 - Sedan

30,940

34,339

34,205

33,000

3,265

(1,339)

P737 - Sedan

24,625

26,770

25,477

27,000

852

230

69,381

76,712

75,614

74,000

6,233

(2,712)

P604 - Utility

12,371

14,205

14,295

15,000

1,924

795

P625 - Utility

13,251

14,965

16,023

15,000

2,772

35

25,622

29,170

30,318

30,000

4,696

830

15,843

11,021

16,114

11,000

271

(21)

15,843

11,021

16,114

11,000

271

(21)

18,687

16,601

20,755

14,000

2,068

(2,601)

18,687

16,601

20,755

14,000

2,068

(2,601)

Law, Order and Public Safety

Health
P780 - Sedan

Education and Welfare
P702 - Wagon
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19.

Disposals of Assets - 2004-2005 Financial Year (continued)
Net Book Value

Sale Price

Profit (Loss)

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

$

$

$

$

$

$

Item
Plant and Machinery (continued)
Community Amenities
P403 - Traxcavator
P447 - Rubbish Truck
P735 - Sedan
Minor Plant - Sanitation

36,374

36,418

110,000

40,000

73,626

3,582

0

24,780

50,000

25,000

50,000

220

24,284

26,428

22,250

27,000

(2,034)

572

8,610

0

0

3,250

(8,610)

3,250

69,268

87,626

182,250

95,250

112,982

7,624

Recreation and Culture
P304 - Mower

1,029

1,892

1,364

1,000

335

(892)

P309 - Utility

12,115

13,589

15,524

15,000

3,409

1,411

P318 - Mower

9,405

3,130

7,000

4,000

(2,405)

870

P338 - Mower

1,178

2,050

1,364

1,000

186

(1,050)

P369 - Truck

0

0

18,182

15,000

18,182

15,000

P399 - Utility

14,894

16,480

17,524

15,000

2,630

(1,480)

P506 - Van

9,125

10,570

12,841

10,000

3,716

(570)

P515 - Utility

12,115

13,589

14,023

15,000

1,908

1,411

P784 - Sedan

12,575

14,201

15,846

15,000

3,271

799

Minor Plant - Parks

96

0

0

1,700

(96)

1,700

72,532

75,501

103,668

92,700

31,136

17,199

P114 - Roller

0

2,004

0

10,000

0

7,996

P120 - Roller

482

1,192

1,800

1,000

1,318

(192)

P153 - Roller

00

0

20,000

0

20,000

P732 - Sedan

23,559

25,689

24,160

28,000

601

2,311

P733 - Sedan

0

15,350

0

13,000

0

(2,350)

P777 - Sedan

12,076

14,180

8,568

13,000

(3,508)

(1,180)

Transport

Minor Plant - Engineering

2,758

0

0

2,450

(2,758)

2,450

38,875

58,415

34,528

87,450

(4,347)

29,035

15,121

13,409

15,846

13,000

725

(409)

15,121

13,409

15,846

13,000

725

(409)

Total Plant - Machinery

325,329

368,455

479,093

417,400

153,764

48,945

Total Assets

447,062

368,455

479,093

537,400

32,031

168,945

Economic Services
P720 - Sedan
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20.

Financial Ratios
2005

2004

2003

2002

Current Ratio

2.23

1.53

1.11

0.91

Debt Ratio

0.04

0.03

0.02

0.02

Debt Service Ratio

0.01

0.04

0.02

0.05

Rate Coverage Ratio

0.54

0.51

0.51

0.56

Outstanding Rates Ratio

0.03

0.06

0.08

0.09

The above ratios are calculated as follows:
Current Ratio

Current Assets Minus Restricted Current Assets
Current Liabilities Minus Liabilities From Restricted Assets

Debt Ratio

Total Liabilities
Total Assets

Debt Service Ratio

Debt Service Cost (Principal and Interest)
Available Operating Revenue

Rate Coverage Ratio

Net Rate Revenue
Operating Revenue

Outstanding Rates Ratio

Rates Outstanding
Rates Collectable
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21.

Information on Borrowings

a.

Repayment - Debentures (Budget)
Principal

New

Principal

Principal

Interest

1 July

Loans

Payments

30 June

Payments

Budget

Budget

Budget

$

$

$

Particulars

$

$

Governance
282 - Corporate System

800,000

0

87,000

713,000

50,000

283 - ARA Works (1)

0

400,000

13,000

387,000

17,000

285 - Temporary Admin

0

400,000

33,000

367,000

17,000

Recreation and Culture
268 - Pries Park Pavilion

15,940

0

7,428

8,512

1,731

271 - Armadale Recreation

77,660

0

24,404

53,256

6,203

276 - Gwynne Park Pavilion

52,442

0

12,029

40,413

3,362

281 - Armadale Golf Plan

130,000

0

0

130,000

6,890

284 - Rushton Park Develop

0

170,000

5,600

164,400

7,200

286 - Kelmscott Library

0

100,000

3,300

96,700

4,200

112,236

0

12,288

99,948

6,929

45,651

0

45,651

0

585

1,233,929

1,070,000

243,700

2,060,229

121,100

Economic Services
280 - Forrestdale Land
Other Property and Services
279 - Former Administration

b.

Repayment - Debentures (Actual)

Particulars

Principal

New

Principal

Principal

Interest

1 July

Loans

Payments

30 June

Payments

Actual

Actual

Actual

$

$

$

$

$

Governance
282 - Corporate System

800,000

0

94,987

705,013

46,122

283 - ARA Works (1)

0

0

0

0

0

285 - Temporary Admin

0

485,000

0

485,000

2,421

268 - Pries Park Pavilion

19,896

0

7,429

12,467

1,225

271 - Armadale Recreation

77,660

0

24,404

53,256

4,143

276 - Gwynne Park Pavilion

52,442

0

9,290

43,152

2,828

Recreation and Culture

281 - Armadale Golf Plan

130,000

0

0

130,000

6,862

284 - Rushton Park Develop

0

0

0

0

0

286 - Kelmscott Library

0

100,000

0

100,000

499

112,237

0

12,288

99,949

6,166

Economic Services
280 - Forrestdale Land
Other Property and Services
279 - Former Administration

45,651

0

45,651

0

1,034

1,237,886

585,000

194,049

1,628,837

71,300
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21.

Information on Borrowings (continued)

c.

New Debentures - 2004-2005 Financial Year
Amount Borrowed

Amount Used

Actual

Budget

Actual

Budget

Unspent

$

$

$

$

$

Particulars
285 - Temporary Admin

485,000

400,000

485,000

400,000

0

286 - Kelmscott Library

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

0

Institution

Loan

Term

Total

Interest

Type

(Years)

Interest and

Rate

Particulars

d.

Balance

Charges

285 - Temporary Admin

WATC

Debenture

10

161,954

5.74

286 - Kelmscott Library

WATC

Debenture

10

33,393

5.74

Unspent Debentures
There were no Unspent Debentures as at 30 June 2005.

e.

Overdraft Facilities
Council did not utilise an overdraft facility during the 2004-2005 financial year, although a $100,000 facility has been established
with the Challenge Bank to assist with short term liquidity requirements.
A further provision to this facility is the permitted temporary increase to $1,500,000 during the months of July through
September if required. Council did not utilise these facilities and the balance of any bank overdrafts at 1 July 2004 and 30
June 2005 was $nil.

f.

Interest Rate Risk
Council’s exposure to interest rate risk as a result of borrowings and the weighted average interest rate on these borrowings
is as follows:

Borrowings

2005

2004

$

$

Floating Interest Rates
Fixed Interest Rate Maturing
- Within One Year

322,469

45,652

- One to Five Years

902,150

1,062,235

- Over Five Years

274,218

0

Non Interest Bearing

130,000

130,000

Total Borrowings

1,628,837

1,237,887

5.86%

5.93%

Weighted Average Effective Interest Rate
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2005

2005
Budget

$
22.

Budget Comparison

a.

Non-Operating Revenue and Expenditure

$

The following is a comparison of non-operating revenue and expenditure, including movements to and from
reserve accounts, with the amounts contained in the Rate Setting Statement in the Budget.

Non-Operating Revenue
Proceeds on Sale of Assets

479,092

537,400

Debentures Raised

585,000

1,070,000

Repayments of Self-Supporting Loans

0

2,900

Proceeds from Advances

0

0

Transfers from Reserves

1,019,995

1,440,400

0

133,200

Transfers from Restricted Assets
Non-Operating Expense
Advances to Community Groups

0

0

(194,050)

(243,700)

0

0

0

0

- Land and Buildings

(1,067,953)

(1,114,816)

- Plant and Machinery

(1,469,787)

(2,054,753)

(2,900)

(13,133)

- Infrastructure

(6,441,148)

(11,587,863)

Transfers to Reserves

(1,852,756)

(1,634,367)

Principal Repayment of Debentures
Principal Repayment of Finance Leases
Construction / Purchase of Assets
- Land Held for Resale

- Furniture and Equipment

b.

Current Position at 1 July 2004
The current position balance carried forward from the previous financial year for the purpose of the 20042005 Annual Budget, after calculation for budgetary purposes, was $5,165,075.

The actual current position balance shown in the audited financial report as at 30 June 2004, after the same
calculations as performed for the Annual Budget have been conducted, was $6,214,422.

The difference was due largely to the non-accounting for current employee provisions, as well as the nonaccounting of some restricted assets. Other various audit adjustments also accounted for the difference.
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23.

Rating Information - 2004-2005 Financial Year
Budget
Rate in $ /

Property

Rateable

Rate

Interim /

Total

Minimum

Numbers

Value

Revenue

Back

Revenue

Charge

Rating

Rate Type

$

$

$

$

Differential Rate - GRV
Residential Vacant

11.0000

34

439,384

46,443

0

46,443

Residential Improved

10.6144

14,856

98,162,638

10,419,375

152,840

10,572,215

Residential Rural Vacant

11.8855

99

975,682

113,706

0

113,706

Residential Rural Improve

11.4355

1,704

15,846,987

1,812,182

0

1,812,182

Business

10.6146

420

24,420,113

2,592,098

0

2,592,098

0.5770

230

100,083,450

576,126

0

576,126

17,343

239,928,254

15,559,930

152,840

15,712,770

Differential Rate - UV
Rural General
Sub-Total
Minimum Rate - GRV
Residential Vacant

630

543

1,543,195

342,090

0

342,090

Residential Improved

550

1,747

8,131,508

960,850

0

960,850

Residential Rural Vacant

753

297

1,350,599

223,641

0

223,641

Residential Rural Improved

683

239

1,253,324

163,237

0

163,237

Business

873

310

1,589,977

270,630

0

270,630

678

26

1,806,907

17,628

0

17,628

3,162

15,675,510

1,978,076

0

1,978,076

20,505

255,603,764

17,538,006

152,840

17,690,846

Minimum Rate - UV
Rural General
Sub-Total
Total
Rate Equivalent Charge
Specified Area Rates
Total

0
Note 24

0
17,690,846
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23.

Rating Information - 2004-2005 Financial Year (continued)
Actual
Rate in $ /

Property

Rateable

Rate

Interim /

Total

Minimum

Numbers

Value

Revenue

Back

Revenue

Charge

Rating

Rate Type

$

$

$

$

Differential Rate - GRV
Residential Vacant

11.0000

39

430,984

47,408

(15,555)

31,853

Residential Improved

10.6144

14,879

98,561,540

Residential Rural Vacant

11.8855

97

940,126

10,461,711

72,489

10,534,200

111,739

(10,706)

101,033

Residential Rural Improve

11.4355

1,650

15,122,286

1,729,309

37,881

1,767,190

Business

10.6146

420

24,397,341

2,589,680

11,832

2,601,512

0.5770

296

112,288,750

647,906

(2,282)

645,624

17,381

251,741,027

15,587,753

93,659

15,681,412

Differential Rate - UV
Rural General
Sub-Total
Minimum Rate - GRV
Residential Vacant

630

509

1,470,607

320,670

61,347

382,017

Residential Improved

550

1,759

8,159,448

967,450

(4,318)

963,132

Residential Rural Vacant

753

285

1,311,463

214,605

6,158

220,763

Residential Rural Improved

683

239

1,249,500

163,237

(3,166)

160,071

Business

873

314

1,606,197

274,122

(801)

273,321

678

29

2,265,907

19,662

563

20,225

3,135

16,063,122

1,959,746

59,783

2,019,529

20,516

267,804,149

17,547,499

153,442

17,700,941

Minimum Rate - UV
Rural General
Sub-Total
Total
Rate Equivalent Charge
Specified Area Rates
Total

2,176
Note 24

0
17,703,117
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24.

Specified Area Rate - 2004-2005 Financial Year
Council did not raise any specified area rates for the 2004-2005 financial year. Therefore no transfer to, or from, reserve
accounts has occurred.

25.

Service Charges - 2004-2005 Financial Year
Council did not raise any service charges for the 2004-2005 financial year. Therefore no transfer to, or from, reserve accounts
has occurred.

26.

Discounts, Incentives, Concessions and Write-Offs - 2004-2005 Financial Year
Discounts
Council did not provide any discounts in the 2004-2005 financial year.

Incentives
Two rate payment incentives were offered by Council in the 2004-2005 financial year. The first was four weekly prizes of
$700 and was provided in conjunction with the Armadale Shopping City and the Examiner Newspaper. Entry forms were
made available with the rates notice and weekly issues of the Examiner Newspaper over a four week period. Completed
entry forms were required to be placed in a barrel located at the Armadale Shopping City and each week over a four week
period a winning entry was drawn. For prize winners that had not yet paid their rates the $700 prize was forwarded to
Council to credit their rates account and prize winners that had already paid their rates received a $700 Armadale Shopping
City gift voucher. The second incentive of three prizes of $1,000 was provided in conjunction with Australia Post (who
provided one of the prizes). Entries were conditional on the basis of full payment of rates by 24 September 2004. Winners
were selected by random computer selection.

Concessions
No concessions were offered in the 2004-2005 financial year.
Write-Offs
The following write-offs were made during the 2004-2005 financial year:
$
Various Rates

20,738

Various Sundry Debtors

25,677
46,415
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27.

Interest Charges and Instalments - 2004-2005 Financial Year
Particulars

Interest

Admin

Revenue

Revenue

Rate

Charge

Actual

Budget

%

$

$

$

Interest on Late Paid Rates

11

-

Interest on Instalment Plans

5.5

-

82,089

91,620

Charges on Instalment Plans

-

19.20

108,006

122,160

Charges on Special Arrangements

-

31.00

14,488

10,180

72,882

76,350

Ratepayers had the option of paying rates in four equal instalments with administration charges and interest applied for the
final three instalments.

28.

2005

2004

$

$

287,235

256,910

Fees and Charges
General Purpose Funding
Governance

1,400

1,139

256,780

256,857

Health

76,686

65,885

Education and Welfare

22,363

7,500

Law, Order and Public Safety

Housing
Community Amenities
Recreation and Culture
Transport

0

0

3,865,925

4,912,982

678,387

444,344

15,804

28,692

Economic Services

369,831

303,331

Other Property and Services

300,985

5,408

5,875,396

6,283,048
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2005 $

2005

2004 $

Budget
$
29.

$

$

Grant Revenue
By Nature and Type
Grants and Subsidies - Operating

2,330,377

2,831,673

Grants and Subsidies - Non-Operating

4,914,945

2,491,142

7,245,322

5,322,815

1,868,519

2,638,348

By Programme
General Purpose Funding
Law, Order and Public Safety

175,928

98,875

Education and Welfare

177,497

360,124

Community Amenities

50,300

(4,275)

Recreation and Culture
Transport

30.

110,500
2,119,243

7,245,322

5,322,815

219

212

Employee Numbers
Number of full-time equivalent employees at balance
date

31.

146,792
4,826,286

Councillors’ Remuneration
The following fees, expenses and allowances were paid to Council members and / or the Mayor.

32.

Annual Attendance Fees

90,000

90,000

90,000

Annual Local Government Allowance

38,000

38,000

32,750

Telecommunications Allowance

18,008

16,800

11,407

Travel Reimbursement

7,072

9,000

6,432

Communications Reimbursement

9,097

11,200

576

Information Technology Allowance

0

14,000

0

162,177

179,000

141,165

Employees Remuneration
Set out below, in bands of $10,000, is the number of employees of the City entitled to an annual salary of
$100,000 or more.

33.

100,000 - 109,999

2

2

110,000 - 119,999

0

0

120,000 - 129,999

0

0

130,000 - 139,999

0

1

140,000 - 149,999

1

0

Economic Dependency
Some revenue is received by way of grants from the State and Federal Government. The total of grant
revenue from government sources is disclosed in Note 29.

34.

Major Land Transactions
Council did not enter into any major land transactions in the 2004-2005 financial year.
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35. Australian Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards
For reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005, the
City will be required to prepare financial statements using Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and
their related pronouncements (AIFRSs) as issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
As the AASB has prohibited the early adoption of AIFRSs, the City
will report for the first time in compliance with AIFRSs in the annual
financial report for the year ended 30 June 2006 (that is, the year
commencing 1 July 2005).
The City is required to prepare an opening balance sheet in accordance
with AIFRSs as at 1 July 2004. Most adjustments required on transition
to AIFRSs will be made retrospectively against opening retained earnings
on 1 July 2004 in accordance with AIFRSs. Transitional adjustments
relating to those standards for which comparatives are not required will
only be made with effect from 1 July 2005.
The transition to the AIFRSs has been managed via a process of
education that includes technical training and liaison with industry and
professional groups. This has included a review of AIFRSs to determine
the effect on the City’s existing accounting policies and treatments.
The annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2005 has been
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and other
financial reporting requirements (Australian GAAP). The differences
between Australian GAAP and AIFRSs identified to date as potentially
having a significant effect on the City are summarised below.
The summary should not be taken as an exhaustive list as the City is
still assessing the impact of AIFRSs. Consequently, in some instances,
quantified impacts of AIFRSs may not have been disclosed as disclosure
of information may be misleading and may not fully represent the
overall impact of transition.
Property, Plant and Equipment
AIFRSs provide an option to value each class of property, plant and
equipment at either cost or fair value. At the transition date, an election
is available under AIFRSs transition rules to use cost, fair value or
deemed costs as the opening carrying value. It is the current intention
of the City to adopt a combination of the following:
• Value some asset classes on the cost basis, adjusted for any
accumulated impairment balances.
• Use deemed cost for some asset classes previously carried at
a revalued amount adjusted for any accumulated impairment
balances.
• Use fair value for some asset classes and revalued with sufficient
regularity to ensure carrying amounts are not materially different
from their fair value at reporting date.
At this point it is not anticipated that any adjustments to carrying values
will result from the above approaches. If they do, they will be recognised
against opening retained earnings or past revaluation reserves in the
opening balance sheet.
Employee Benefits
AIFRSs require all long term employee benefits to be measured at
present value. This treatment remains unchanged for the measurement
of non current long service leave entitlements under current Australian
GAAP. However, non current annual leave entitlements are currently
measured at the amount the City expects to pay and not at present
value.
It is not anticipated any such adjustment will be significant. However,
adjustments to provisions, if any, will be made against opening retained
earnings in the opening balance sheet and the effect on the year ended

30 June 2005 will also be adjusted via the operating statement for
comparison purposes in the City’s first AIFRSs financial report.
Impairment of Assets
Currently, assets are written down to recoverable amount when the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds recoverable amount. In determining
recoverable amount, expected future cash flows are currently not
discounted to their present value.
Under AIFRSs, both current and non-current assets are tested for
impairment on an individual basis. If this is not possible, the City is
required to test for impairment at the Cash Generating Unit (CGU)
level.
It is anticipated the City’s material assets will be able to be tested for
impairment on an individual basis and the CGU level will not apply.
Assets are tested for impairment where an impairment trigger (per
AIFRSs) has occurred. Intangibles with indefinite useful lives will
be tested annually for impairment (or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate).
To the extent any impairment is determined, this will be recognised
immediately in the operating statement.
Assets may be considered impaired in one reporting period and not
in subsequent periods. Therefore, it is not practicable to determine
the impact of the change in accounting policy for future financial
reports as any impairment or reversal thereof will be affected by future
conditions. Based on assessment to date, it is not anticipated that any
such adjustments will be required.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Under current Australian GAAP, financial assets and financial liabilities
are recognised at cost, at fair value, or at net market value.
On adoption of AIFRSs, the City will be required to classify these
financial instruments into various specified categories (being either of
trading assets, held to maturity investments, loans and receivables or
available for sale financial assets). The classification of the instrument
determines the instrument’s subsequent measurement.
It is anticipated, based on definitions contained within AIFRSs, the City’s
financial assets and liabilities will be classified in the loans and receivables
category and will be measured at their initial recognition amount.
Based on reviews performed to date, it is not anticipated any such
adjustments will be significant.
However, in accordance with AIFRSs, such financial assets will be
subject to annual impairment testing and to the extent any impairment
testing is determined, it will be recognised immediately in the operating
statement.
Assets may be considered impaired in one reporting period and not
in subsequent periods. Therefore, it is not practicable to determine
the impact of the change in accounting policy for future financial
reports as any impairment or reversal thereof will be affected by future
conditions.
Cash Flow Statements
There are no material differences between the cash flow statement
presented under AIFRSs and the Cash Flow Statement presented
under Australian GAAP.

